
City Council Agenda            February 24, 2020 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

   

 

  

 

STATE OF THE CITY ADDRESS 
 

 

 
AGENDA 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2020 – 6:30 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jeramy Young  
 
ROLL CALL:  Mayor Jeramy Young 
    Mayor Pro Tem George Carr 
    Councilmember Ramon Bawanan 
    Councilmember Harold Hill 
    Councilmember Michael Buck 
 
FLAG SALUTE: Mayor Jeramy Young 
 
INVOCATION:  Hughson Ministerial Association  

 
 
 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
Special City Council Session 

SAMARITAN VILLAGE ALMOND & WALNUT ROOM 
7700 Fox Road Hughson, CA 

 

 
  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 



City Council Agenda            February 24, 2020 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

 
1. STATE OF THE CITY ADDRESS, PRESENTED BY MAYOR JERAMY YOUNG 
 
ADJOURN TO A RECESS AND REFRESHMENTS (Approximately 30 Minutes) 
  
RECONVENE TO THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
2. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 
Members of the audience may address the City Council on any item of interest to the public 
pertaining to the City and may step to the podium, state their name and city of residence for the 
record (requirement of name and city of residence is optional) and make their presentation. 
Please limit presentations to five minutes. Since the City Council cannot take action on matters 
not on the agenda, unless the action is authorized by Section 54954.2 of the Government Code, 
items of concern, which are not urgent in nature can be resolved more expeditiously by completing 
and submitting to the City Clerk a “Citizen Request Form” which may be obtained from the City 
Clerk. 
 
3. PRESENTATIONS:  NONE. 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
All items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted upon by a single action of the City 
Council unless otherwise requested by an individual Councilmember for special 
consideration.  Otherwise, the recommendation of staff will be accepted and acted upon 
by roll call vote. 
 

4.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 10, 2020. 
 
4.2: Approve the Warrants Register.  
 
4.3: Approval to Waive the Second Reading and Adopt Ordinance No. 2020-03, 

Amending Chapters 10.32, 17.01 and 17.03 of the Hughson Municipal Code 
Concerning Parking of Vehicles. 

 
4.4: Approval to Waive the Second Reading and Adopt Ordinance No. 2020-04, 

Amending Chapters 2.12 and 2.14 of the Hughson Municipal Code 
Concerning the Method of Appointment of the Planning Commission and 
the Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission.  

 

RULES FOR ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL 
 
Members of the audience who wish to address the City Council are requested to complete one of 
the forms located on the table at the entrance of the Council Chambers and submit it to the City 
Clerk. Filling out the card is voluntary.  
 



City Council Agenda            February 24, 2020 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

4.5: Adopt Resolution No. 2020-04, Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Professional Services Agreement with Bartle Wells Associates to Prepare 
a Comprehensive Wastewater Rate Study Update for the City of Hughson. 

 
4.6: Adopt Resolution No. 2020-05,  Approving the First Amendment to the 

Professional Service Agreement with Harris and Associates for Assessment 
District Administration Services. 

 
4.7: Adopt Resolution No. 2020-06, Accepting the Public Improvements for the 

Province Place Subdivision. 
 
4.8: Accept the Quarterly City of Hughson Legislative Report. 

 
5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  NONE. 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE. 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS:   
 

7.1: Adopt Resolution No. 2020-07, Adopting the City of Hughson Unclaimed 
Property (Money) Policy. 

 
7.2: Consider the Recommendation from the Parks, Recreation and 

Entertainment Commission Regarding the Request from the Hughson 
Unified School District for City Funding for the Hughson Sports and 
Fitness Complex Parking Lot Improvement Project. 

 
8. CORRESPONDENCE:   
 

8.1: Governor’s Office of Planning and Research State Clearinghouse and 
Planning Unit – Presidential Executive Order 12372. 

 
8.2: Stanislaus LAFCO Policies and Procedures Update. 

    
9. COMMENTS: 
 

9.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
  
City Manager:       
 
Deputy City Clerk: 
 
Community Development Director: 
  
Director of Finance and Admin Services: 
 



City Council Agenda            February 24, 2020 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

4 

Police Services:  
   
City Attorney: 
 
Student Representative: 
 

9.2: Council Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 

9.3: Mayor’s Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
  
 10. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:    
 
 10.1: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

(Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9) 
Name of case: CITY OF HUGHSON vs. THE DOW CHEMICAL 
COMPANY; DOW AGROSCIENCES, LLC; SHELL OIL COMPANY, 
individually and doing business as SHELL CHEMICAL COMPANY; 
OCCIDENTAL CHEMICAL CORPORATION; WILBUR ELLIS COMPANY; 
J.R. SIMPLOT COMPANY; FMC CORPORATION, Superior Court of 
California, County of San Francisco, Case No. CGC-14-542221. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 

 
UPCOMING EVENTS: 
 

March 9  Assembly Member Heath Flora Mobile District Office, City Hall 
Chambers, 6:00 P.M. 

March 9  City Council Meeting, City Hall Chambers, 7:00 P.M. 

March 10  Parks, Recreation & Entertainment Commission, City Hall 
Chambers, 6:00 P.M. 

March 17  Planning Commission, City Hall Chambers, 6:00 P.M. 

March 23  Economic Development Committee Meeting, City Hall Chambers, 
5:30 P.M. 

March 23  City Council Meeting, City Hall Chambers, 7:00 P.M. 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
 

WAIVER WARNING 
 
If you challenge a decision/direction of the City Council in court, you may be limited to raising only those 
issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing(s) described in this Agenda, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City of Hughson at or prior to, the public hearing(s).           



City Council Agenda            February 24, 2020 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

5 

DATE:          February 21, 2020 TIME:                        2:30 P.M. 

NAME:          Ashton Gose TITLE:                   Deputy City Clerk  
         
 

 
Notice Regarding Non-English Speakers:  

 
Pursuant to California Constitution Article III, Section IV, establishing English as the official 
language for the State of California, and in accordance with California Code of Civil Procedures 
Section 185, which requires proceedings before any State Court to be in English, notice is hereby 
given that all proceedings before the City of Hughson City Council shall be in English and anyone 
wishing to address the Council is required to have a translator present who will take an oath to 
make an accurate translation from any language not English into the English language. 
 
 
General Information: The Hughson City Council meets in the Council Chambers on the 

second and fourth Mondays of each month at 7:00 p.m., unless 
otherwise noticed.  

 
Council Agendas: The City Council agenda is now available for public review at the 

City’s website at www.hughson.org  and City Clerk's Office, 7018 
Pine Street, Hughson, California on the Friday, prior to the 
scheduled meeting. Copies and/or subscriptions can be 
purchased for a nominal fee through the City Clerk’s Office.   

 
Questions:             Contact the City Clerk at (209) 883-4054 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT/CALIFORNIA BROWN ACT 
NOTIFICATION FOR THE CITY OF HUGHSON 

 
This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability; as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code Section 54954.2).    
 
Disabled or Special needs Accommodation:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 
requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting and/or if  you need 
assistance to attend or participate in a City Council meeting, please contact  the City Clerk’s office at (209) 883-4054. 
Notification at least 48-hours prior to the meeting will assist the City Clerk in assuring that reasonable 
accommodations are made to provide accessibility to the meeting.  

http://www.hughson.org/


Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

 

  
Meeting Date: February 24, 2020
Subject: Approval of the City Council Minutes 
Presented By:  Ashton Gose, Deputy City Clerk 

 
Approved By:         _______________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
  
Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 10, 2020. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The draft minutes of the February 10, 2020 meeting are prepared for the Council’s review.  
   
 

 

  

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.1 
SECTION 4:  CONSENT CALENDAR    



City Council Minutes            February 10, 2020 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

1 

 

  
MINUTES 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2020 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jeramy Young 
 
ROLL CALL:   
 

Present:  Mayor Jeramy Young 
   Councilmember Harold Hill 

Councilmember Ramon Bawanan  
    Councilmember Michael Buck 
 

Absent:  Mayor Pro Tem George Carr 
 

Staff Present: Raul Mendez, City Manager 
   Daniel Schroeder, City Attorney  
   Ashton Gose, Deputy City Clerk 
   Lea Simvoulakis, Community Development Director 
   Merry Mayhew, Director of Finance and Admin Services  
   Jaime Velazquez, Utilities Superintendent 
   Lisa Whiteside, Finance Manager 
   Jose Vasquez, Public Works Superintendent 
   Sanjay Prasad, Sheriff’s Deputy  
   Peter Rei, Contracted City Engineer 
   Logan Applegate, Student Representative 
 

FLAG SALUTE:  Mayor Jeramy Young  
 
INVOCATION:  Hughson Ministerial Association  

 
 

1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken): 
 
Hughson resident Marnie Cain provided information to the City Council regarding 
a free CPR Training at the IOOF Odd Fellows Hall on February 20, 2020. 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 



City Council Minutes            February 10, 2020 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

2 

 
2. PRESENTATIONS:  NONE. 

 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 
All items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted upon by a single action of the City 
Council unless otherwise requested by an individual Councilmember for special 
consideration.  Otherwise, the recommendation of staff will be accepted and acted upon 
by roll call vote. 
 

3.1: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 27, 2020. 
 
3.2: Approve the Warrants Register.  
 
 

YOUNG/HILL    4-0-0-1 motion passes to approve the Consent Calendar as 
presented. 
 
4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  NONE. 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:     
 

5.1: Introduce and Waive the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2020-03, 
Amending Chapters 10.32, 17.01 and 17.03 of the Hughson Municipal Code 
Concerning the Parking of Recreation Vehicles. 

 
Director Simvoulakis presented the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Young opened the public hearing at 7:08 P.M. There was no public comment. 
Mayor Young closed the public hearing at 7:08 P.M. 
 
BAWANAN/YOUNG 4-0-0-1 motion passes to introduce and waive the 
first reading of Ordinance No. 2020-03, Amending Chapters 10.32, 17.01 and 17.03 
of the Hughson Municipal Code Concerning the Parking of Recreation Vehicles. 
 

5.2: Introduce and Waive the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2020-04, 
Amending Chapters 2.12 and 2.14 of the Hughson Municipal Code 
Concerning the Method of Appointment of the Planning Commission and 
the Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission. 

 
City Attorney Schroeder presented the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Young opened the public hearing at 7:16 P.M. There was no public comment. 
Mayor Young closed the public hearing at 7:16 P.M. 
 
HILL/YOUNG 4-0-0-1 motion passes to introduce and waive the first 
reading of Ordinance No. 2020-04, Amending Chapters 2.12 and 2.14 of the 



City Council Minutes            February 10, 2020 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

3 

Hughson Municipal Code Concerning the Method of Appointment of the Planning 
Commission and the Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS:   
 

6.1: Approval to Adopt Resolution No.2020-03, Awarding the Santa Fe Overlay 
Project (Phase 2) Bid to Tom Mayo Construction, Inc. in the Amount of 
$325,955 and Authorizing a 10% Construction Contingency as Well as a 
10% Set-aside for Construction Management. 

 
Director Simvoulakis and Contracted City Engineer Rei presented the staff report 
on this item.  
 
Mayor Young opened public comment at 7:23 P.M. There was no public comment. 
Mayor Young closed public comment at 7:23 P.M. 
 
YOUNG/HILL  4-0-0-1  motion passes to adopt Resolution 
No.2020-03, Awarding the Santa Fe Overlay Project (Phase 2) Bid to Tom Mayo 
Construction, Inc. in the Amount of $325,955 and Authorizing a 10% Construction 
Contingency as Well as a 10% Set-aside for Construction Management.  
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE: NONE. 
    
8. COMMENTS: 
 

8.1: Staff Reports and Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 

City Manager: 
City Manager Mendez reminded the City Council that City Hall will have holiday closures 
on February 12, 2020 and February 17, 2020. He also provided a reminder regarding a 
City/Fire 2+2 Committee Meeting on February 12, 2020, a blood drive sponsored by the 
Hughson Fire Protection District in honor of Ron Callahan, a ribbon cutting by the 
Hughson Chamber of Commerce for El Fuego on February 21, 2020 and Mayor Young’s 
State of the City Address on February 24, 2020. 
 
Deputy City Clerk: 
Deputy City Clerk Gose informed the City Council that Stanislaus County provided the 
City an absentee ballot drop box, which is located in the City Hall lobby. 
 
Community Development Director: 
Director Simvoulakis informed the City Council that she would be hosting a Public Works 
Directors luncheon on February 13, 2020. 
 
Police Services:  
Deputy Prasad provided the City Council with the latest Crime Statistic Report. 
 



City Council Minutes            February 10, 2020 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

4 

Student Representative: 
Student Representative Applegate informed the City Council that the High School Winter 
Sports will be ending. He also provided an update regarding student interviews being 
conducted for the State of the City Address. 
 

8.2: Council Comments: (Information Only – No Action) 
 
Councilmember Bawanan provided a reminder that the Hughson Chamber of 
Commerce provides Hughson High School Seniors with scholarship opportunities. 
He attended a Toastmasters Open house, and a Knights of Columbus Annual Crab 
Feed Recap meeting. He will attend a Hughson Chamber of Commerce Retreat on 
February 12, 2020. He will also be attending the first 2020 Hughson Fruit and Nut 
Festival Planning meeting on February 20, 2020. He thanked City staff and Hughson 
Police Services for their dedicated work.  
 
Councilmember Hill attended an Economic Development Action Committee on 
February 6, 2020. 
 
Councilmember Buck attended the Stanislaus County Annual Mentoring 
Celebration on January 30, 2020. He attended a Turlock West Subbasin GSA 
meeting on February 6, 2020. He will be attending a Lion’s Club meeting on 
February 25, 2020. 
 
Mayor Young attended a StanCOG Executive Committee meeting on February 10, 
2020. He will be hosting a Mayor’s meeting in Hughson on February 12, 2020. 
 
 9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:   
 
 9.1: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) 
Or (3) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9:  One (1) case 

 
No reportable action. 
  
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
YOUNG/HILL  4-0-0-1  motion passes to adjourn the meeting at 7:51 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
JERAMY YOUNG, Mayor  



City Council Minutes            February 10, 2020 
 

 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 
 

5 

 
 
_____________________________  
ASHTON GOSE, Deputy City Clerk  



 

 

  
Meeting Date: February 24, 2020 
Subject: Approval of Warrants Register 
Enclosure: Warrants Register 
Presented By:  Lisa Whiteside, Finance Manager 

 
Approved By: ____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve the Warrants Register as presented.     
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The warrants register presented to the City Council is a listing of all expenditures 
paid from February 7, 2020 to February 20, 2020. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There are reductions in various funds for payment of expenses. 
 
 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.2 
SECTION 4:  CONSENT CALENDAR 













 

 

  
 
Meeting Date: February 24, 2020 
Subject: Approval to Waive the Second Reading and Adopt 

Ordinance No. 2020-03, Amending Chapters 10.32, 17.01 
and 17.03 of the Hughson Municipal Code Concerning 
Parking of Vehicles.  

Presented By:  Lea C. Simvoulakis, Community Development Director 
 Daniel J. Schroeder, City Attorney 

 
Approved By: ___________________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Waive the second reading and adopt Ordinance No. 2020-03, amending Chapters 
10.32, 17.01 and 17.03 of the Hughson Municipal Code concerning parking of 
vehicles. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
At the June 10 and July 22, 2019 City Council meetings, City staff presented 
recommended changes to the Hughson Municipal Code to address the various 
concerns posed by the community related to the parking of recreational vehicles 
(RVs) within the City limits. The impetus for these recommended changes were the 
various discussions at City Council meetings about RVs and complaints received by 
the Code Enforcement Officer from the community.   
 
During the regular meeting of July 22, the City Council reached consensus on four 
of the six recommended changes.  City staff was directed to further develop the two 
recommendations that pertained to parking surface and setback requirements and 
bring those back with further clarification and when the full City Council was present.   
At the November 25, 2019 meeting, City staff presented the four topics related to 
the storage of RVs on public and private property, and brough back the two items 
for clarification.  At this meeting, staff received Council’s direction related to these 
items and took the proposed code changes to the Planning Commission on 
December 17, 2019.   
 
The Planning Commission considered the draft ordinance amendment and found 
that the proposed changes were consistent with the City’s Adopted General Plan.  

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.3 
SECTION 4: CONSENT CALENDAR   



City staff then needed a minor clarification on an item and went back to the City 
Council for clarification.  Once staff received the clarification from the City Council, 
the ordinance was taken back to the Planning Commission on January 21, 2020 for 
their consideration and to ensure compliance with the City’s Adopted General Plan.   
 
Today, all the code changes related to RVs are presented in Ordinance 2020-03.  
Should the Council agree to do so, the first reading of the ordinance will be waived 
and then will be brought back for formal adoption at its subsequent regular meeting.   
 
Discussion:   
 
The following are the ordinance changes related to RVs: 
 

1. The 72-hour Rule: Sections 10.32.300(A) and (C)  
 
“A. The city council hereby finds and determines that the unrestricted parking 
of recreation vehicles (as defined by HMC 17.01.090(R)) on public streets in 
the city leads to their unlawful occupation as dwelling units, congests traffic 
and constitutes a hazard to the public safety in that recreation vehicles restrict 
visibility. 

“C. It is unlawful to park, stop or leave standing recreation vehicles (as defined 
in HMC 17.01.090(R)(1)) on any street, alley or highway, or a portion thereof, 
for more than a period of 72 hours, within any period of seven consecutive 
days, except upon the issuance of a permit for a period not to exceed seven 
consecutive days as long as the recreation vehicle is located in front of the 
applicant’s single family dwelling. Permits under this subsection may be 
issued pursuant to HMC 10.32.130 and 10.32.140.”  

 
2. Definition: Section 17.01.090(R) 

 
“R. Definitions, “R.” 

 
1. Recreational Vehicle and Recreation Vehicle.  “Recreational 
vehicle” and “recreation vehicle” means mobile home not on a 
foundation, camper, motor home, trailer, fifth wheel, or watercraft. 
 
2. Recreational Vehicle (RV) Park. “Recreational vehicle park” means 
a facility designed and equipped in accordance with the requirements 
of HMC 17.03.052 and applicable state laws, for the accommodation 
of motor homes and recreational vehicles on a temporary basis. 
 
3. Regularly Features. The term “regularly features” with respect to an 
adult theater or adult cabaret means a regular and substantial course 
of conduct. The fact that live performances which are distinguished or 
characterized by an emphasis upon the display of specified anatomical 
areas or specified sexual activities occurs on two or more occasions 
within a 30-day period; three or more occasions within a 60-day period; 



or four or more occasions within a 180-day period, shall to the extent 
permitted by law be deemed to be a regular and substantial course of 
conduct. 

 
4. “Repair service” means any service or facility where electrical, 
electronic or mechanical equipment are repaired away from the 
premises of the customer. 

 
5. “Research laboratory” means a facility for scientific research, 
including but not limited to pharmaceutical, chemical and 
biotechnology research, or the design, development and testing of 
electrical, electronic, magnetic, optical, computer or 
telecommunications components. 

 
6. “Residential care home” means a state authorized, certified or 
licensed family care home, foster home, or group home serving six or 
fewer mentally disordered or otherwise handicapped persons or 
dependent and neglected children on a 24-hour basis. 

 
7. “Restaurant or cafe” means any retail business that sells ready-to-
eat food or beverages for on-premises or off-premises consumption. 

 
3. Number of Vehicles and Location of Private Property: Section 17.03.052 

(A) and (D) 
 

“A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to provide requirements for 
temporary and permanent mobile homes and storage of recreational 
vehicles within the city of Hughson and to ensure that they conform to 
the provisions of the following laws: 

D. Storage. Only one recreation vehicle may be stored off the street 
and on a property when not located behind a fence or in a garage with 
the garage door closed.  A recreational vehicle shall not be stored 
within the front setback of a property as set forth in HMC 17.02.008 
unless it is stored on the driveway, or on the side of a corner parcel as 
shown in figure 17.03.052.1, and out of the public right-of way.   

Figure 17.03.052.1  



 

Any recreation vehicle stored on a property, including behind a fence 
or in a garage, shall not be used or maintained as a living quarters or 
business conducted therein while such vehicle is so parked or stored, 
except as otherwise provided in this section.” 

 
4. Temporary Use for RVs in Residential Zones during Construction: 

Section 17.03.052(G) 
 

“G. Temporary Use of Recreational Vehicles in Residential Zones. A 
recreational vehicle may be used as a single-family dwelling unit on a 
property zoned for single-family residential use for a period of time not 
to exceed the time required to complete the project or one year, 
whichever is less. The City Manager or his/her designee in their sole 
discretion may allow a period of time greater than one year, but in no 
event more than two years.  An administrative permit shall be required 
for such recreational vehicles, subject to the following additional 
requirements: 

1. There is an existing single-family dwelling unit on the site that 
cannot be occupied until repairs are completed, and a valid 
building permit has been issued to make all repairs required to 
make the dwelling unit habitable. 



2. The occupied recreational vehicle is not placed within a 
required setback, with the exception of a designated driveway 
that conforms to the standards of the district in which the 
recreational vehicle is located. 

3. Recreational vehicles shall be located in a designated area 
within the parcel as approved by the planning officer. 
Recreational vehicles shall be located so as to minimize their 
visibility from the public right-of-way or adjacent properties.” 

 
5. Surface: Section 17.03.060(B)(7)  

 
7. Recreational Vehicle Parking.  Recreational vehicles shall be parked on 
areas at grade surfaced with an all-weather material, defined as concrete, 
asphalt, or minimum three-fourth (3/4) inch stone or gravel.  The all-weather 
material shall be a minimum of four (4) inches deep with weed barrier and 
sufficiently compacted so as to eliminate the unreasonable accumulation of 
dust, dirt, mud, or weeds and shall be sufficiently maintained so that it will 
drain and dispose of all surface water per the City’s standard specification.  A 
permit shall be obtained in accordance with HMC 15.04.035 prior to 
construction of a recreational vehicle parking surface pursuant to this 
subsection.  Recreational vehicles shall not discharge any litter, sewer 
effluent, or other matter except into sanitary facilities designed to dispose of 
such materials.  An exception is the use of an unimproved surface for the 
temporary parking of operable recreational vehicles for temporary activities 
(e.g., carnivals, circuses, fairs, concerts, farmers’ markets) being held in 
accordance with a city issued temporary activity or temporary parking permit. 
Any temporary parking must comply with the minimum vehicular parking 
requirements set forth in Table 17.03.060(A). This provision shall not apply to 
any unimproved surfaces owned or operated by another public entity, as 
defined in Government Code Section 811.2, within the city limits. 

 
On February 10, 2020, the Hughson City Council waived the first reading of the 
proposed ordinance and held a public hearing.  The City Council had an opportunity 
to ask questions and seek clarification from City staff regarding the ordinance and 
its elements.  There were no public comments provided during the public hearing. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There is no immediate fiscal impact associated with this discussion item.  RV parking 
requirements within the City limits are currently enforced by the part-time Code 
Enforcement Officer on a complaint-driven basis.  Depending on the level of 
revisions made to the Hughson Municipal Code there may be a need to allocate 
additional staffing resources for enforcement as part of the annual budget process.  
 
 



 
1220421-2 

1 

CITY OF HUGHSON 
CITY COUNCIL 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON, AMENDING 
CHAPTERS 10.32, 17.01 AND 17.03 OF THE HUGHSON MUNICIPAL CODE 

CONCERNING PARKING OF VEHICLES  
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hughson Municipal Code Chapters 10.32, 17.01 and 17.03 
currently provide regulations regarding of parking for all vehicles as well as parking of recreational 
vehicles within the City; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend Chapters 10.32, 17.01 and 17.03 to limit who can 
seek a permit to park aa recreational vehicle on a City street, alley and highway for a period greater 
than 72 hours, limit the storage of recreational vehicles not behind a fence or in a garage, regulate 
the parking surface for recreational vehicles, and the temporary use of a recreational vehicle by 
permit.  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1  Sections 10.32.300(A) and (C) of the Hughson Municipal Code are amended to read 

in full as follows: 

 “A. The city council hereby finds and determines that the unrestricted parking of 
recreation vehicles (as defined by HMC 17.01.090(R)) on public streets in the city 
leads to their unlawful occupation as dwelling units, congests traffic and constitutes a 
hazard to the public safety in that recreation vehicles restrict visibility. 

“C. It is unlawful to park, stop or leave standing recreation vehicles (as defined in 
HMC 17.01.090(R)(1)) on any street, alley or highway, or a portion thereof, for more 
than a period of 72 hours, within any period of seven consecutive days, except upon 
the issuance of a permit for a period not to exceed seven consecutive days as long as 
the recreation vehicle is located in front of the applicant’s single family dwelling. 
Permits under this subsection may be issued pursuant to HMC 10.32.130 and 
10.32.140.”  

Section 2  Section 17.01.090(R) of the Hughson Municipal Code is amended to read in full as 
follows: 

“R. Definitions, “R.” 
 

1. Recreational Vehicle and Recreation Vehicle.  “Recreational vehicle” and 
“recreation vehicle” means mobile home not on a foundation, camper, motor home, 
trailer, fifth wheel, or watercraft. 
 



 
1220421-2 

2 

2. Recreational Vehicle (RV) Park. “Recreational vehicle park” means a facility 
designed and equipped in accordance with the requirements of HMC 17.03.052 and 
applicable state laws, for the accommodation of motor homes and recreational 
vehicles on a temporary basis. 
 
3. Regularly Features. The term “regularly features” with respect to an adult theater 
or adult cabaret means a regular and substantial course of conduct. The fact that live 
performances which are distinguished or characterized by an emphasis upon the 
display of specified anatomical areas or specified sexual activities occurs on two or 
more occasions within a 30-day period; three or more occasions within a 60-day 
period; or four or more occasions within a 180-day period, shall to the extent 
permitted by law be deemed to be a regular and substantial course of conduct. 

 
4. “Repair service” means any service or facility where electrical, electronic or 
mechanical equipment are repaired away from the premises of the customer. 

 
5. “Research laboratory” means a facility for scientific research, including but not 
limited to pharmaceutical, chemical and biotechnology research, or the design, 
development and testing of electrical, electronic, magnetic, optical, computer or 
telecommunications components. 

 
6. “Residential care home” means a state authorized, certified or licensed family care 
home, foster home, or group home serving six or fewer mentally disordered or 
otherwise handicapped persons or dependent and neglected children on a 24-hour 
basis. 

 
7. “Restaurant or cafe” means any retail business that sells ready-to-eat food or 
beverages for on-premises or off-premises consumption. 

 
 
 

Section 3  Sections 17.03.052(A) and (D) of the Hughson Municipal Code is amended to read 
in full as follows: 

 
“A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to provide requirements for temporary 
and permanent mobile homes and storage of recreational vehicles within the city of 
Hughson and to ensure that they conform to the provisions of the following laws: 
 
D. Storage. Only one recreation vehicle may be stored off the street and on a 
property when not located behind a fence or in a garage with the garage door closed.  
A recreational vehicle shall not be stored within the front setback of a property as set 
forth in HMC 17.02.008 unless it is stored on the driveway, or on the side of a corner 
parcel as shown in figure 17.03.052.1, and out of the public right-of way.   
 
 
 



 
1220421-2 

3 

Figure 17.03.052.1  

 
 
 
 
Any recreation vehicle stored on a property, including behind a fence or in a garage, 
shall not be used or maintained as a living quarters or business conducted therein 
while such vehicle is so parked or stored, except as otherwise provided in this 
section.” 
 

 
Section 4  Section 17.03.052(G) of the Hughson Municipal Code is amended to read in full as 

follows: 
 

“G. Temporary Use of Recreational Vehicles in Residential Zones. A recreational 
vehicle may be used as a single-family dwelling unit on a property zoned for single-
family residential use for a period of time not to exceed the time required to 
complete the project or one year, whichever is less. The City Manager or his/her 
designee in their sole discretion may allow a period of time greater than one year, but 
in no event more than two years.  An administrative permit shall be required for such 
recreational vehicles, subject to the following additional requirements: 

 



 
1220421-2 

4 

1. There is an existing single-family dwelling unit on the site that cannot be 
occupied until repairs are completed, and a valid building permit has been 
issued to make all repairs required to make the dwelling unit habitable. 

 
2. The occupied recreational vehicle is not placed within a required setback, 
with the exception of a designated driveway that conforms to the standards of 
the district in which the recreational vehicle is located. 

 
3. Recreational vehicles shall be located in a designated area within the parcel 
as approved by the planning officer. Recreational vehicles shall be located so 
as to minimize their visibility from the public right-of-way or adjacent 
properties.” 

 
Section 5  Section 17.03.060(B)(7) of the Hughson Municipal Code is added to read in full as 
follows: 
 

“7. Recreational Vehicle Parking.  Recreational vehicles shall be parked on areas at 
grade surfaced with an all-weather material, defined as concrete, asphalt, or 
minimum three-fourth (3/4) inch stone or gravel.  The all-weather material shall be a 
minimum of four (4) inches deep with weed barrier and sufficiently compacted so as 
to eliminate the unreasonable accumulation of dust, dirt, mud, or weeds and shall be 
sufficiently maintained so that it will drain and dispose of all surface water per the 
City’s standard specification.  A permit shall be obtained in accordance with HMC 
15.04.035 prior to construction of a recreational vehicle parking surface pursuant to 
this subsection.  Recreational vehicles shall not discharge any litter, sewer effluent, 
or other matter except into sanitary facilities designed to dispose of such materials.  
An exception is the use of an unimproved surface for the temporary parking of 
operable recreational vehicles for temporary activities (e.g., carnivals, circuses, fairs, 
concerts, farmers’ markets) being held in accordance with a city issued temporary 
activity or temporary parking permit. Any temporary parking must comply with the 
minimum vehicular parking requirements set forth in Table 17.03.060(A). This 
provision shall not apply to any unimproved surfaces owned or operated by another 
public entity, as defined in Government Code Section 811.2, within the city limits.” 

 
 
 
Section 6  If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or 
circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 
Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this Ordinance are severable. The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
adopted this Ordinance irrespective of the validity of any particular portion thereof. 
 
Section 7  This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a 
manner that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty of care 
toward persons and property within or without the city so as to provide a basis of civil liability for 
damages, except as otherwise imposed by law. 



 
1220421-2 

5 

Section 8  Within fifteen (15) days after its final passage, the City Clerk shall cause a summary 
of this Ordinance to be published in accordance with California Government Code section 36933. 

Section 9  This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its final 
passage and adoption, provided it is published in a newspaper of general circulation at least fifteen 
(15) days prior to its effective date. 

 
The foregoing Ordinance was introduced, and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the 

City Council of the City of Hughson held on February 10, 2020, and by a vote of the Council 
members present, further reading was waived. 

On motion of Councilperson _________________________, seconded by 
___________________________, the foregoing Ordinance was passed by the City Council of the 
City of Hughson at a regular meeting held on January __, 2020, by the following votes: 

 

AYES:   _____________ 
 
NOES:   _____________ 
 

 ABSTENTIONS: _____________ 
 
 ABSENT:  _____________ 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       JERAMY YOUNG, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
ASHTON GOSE, Deputy City Clerk 

 
 



 

  
Meeting Date: February 24, 2020 
Subject: Approval to Waive the Second Reading and Adopt 

Ordinance No. 2020-04, Amending Chapters 2.12 and 2.14 
of the Hughson Municipal Code Concerning the Method of 
Appointment of the Planning Commission and the Parks, 
Recreation and Entertainment Commission. 

Presented By:  Raul L. Mendez, City Manager 
   Daniel J. Schroeder, City Attorney 

 
Approved By: __________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Waive the second reading and adopt Ordinance No. 2020-04, amending Chapters 
2.12 and 2.14 of the Hughson Municipal Code concerning the method of 
appointment of the Planning Commission and the Parks, Recreation and 
Entertainment Commission. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The Hughson Municipal Code currently provides procedures for the appointment of 
Planning Commissioners and Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commissioners.  
Qualifications to become a Commissioner for either Commission requires, at a 
minimum, citizenship in accordance with California Government Code Section 1020. 
 
The State of California recently adopted SB 225 amending California Government 
Code 1020 amending the eligibility requirements for appointment to people eligible 
to hold appointed offices. 
 
The Commissioners of the Planning Commission and Parks, Recreation and 
Entertainment Commission are appointed civic offices and subject to California 
Government Code 1020 and as amended by SB 225. 
 
  

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.4 
SECTION 4:  CONSENT CALENDAR 



 

Discussion: 
 
The City Attorney reviewed the Hughson Municipal Code considering SB 225 and 
drafted proposed language to ensure conformance with the California Government 
Code.  As such, the following amendments are recommended: 
 
Planning Commission/HMC Section 2.12.020 
 
“To be eligible for appointment or to hold office as a member of The Planning 
Commission, a person shall be at least 18 years of age and a resident of the city.” 
 
Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission/HMC Section 2.14.030 
 
“To be eligible for appointment or to hold office as a member of The Parks, 
Recreation and Entertainment Commission: (1) no fewer than three appointees shall 
be at least 18 years of age and a resident of the City of Hughson; and (2) no more 
than two appointees shall be a person at least 18 years of age that reside outside 
the city limits but within the 95326 zip code.” 
 
On February 10, 2020, the Hughson City Council waived the first reading of the 
proposed ordinance and held a public hearing.  The City Council had an opportunity 
to ask questions and seek clarification from City staff regarding the ordinance and 
its elements.  There were no public comments provided during the public hearing. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with change.   



 
1347142-1 

1 

CITY OF HUGHSON 
CITY COUNCIL 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-04 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON, 
AMENDING CHAPTERS 2.12 AND 2.14 OF THE  

HUGHSON MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING THE METHOD OF 
APPOINTMENT OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION AND THE PARKS, 

RECREATION AND ENTERTAINMENT COMMISSION  
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hughson Municipal Code Chapters 2.12 and 2.14 currently provide 
procedures for the appointment of Planning Commissioners and Parks, Recreation and 
Entertainment Commissioners; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapters 2.12 and 2.14, qualifications to become a 
Commissioner for either Commission requires, at a minimum, citizenship in accordance with 
California Government Code section 1020; and 
 

WHEREAS, The State of California has adopted SB 225 amending California Government 
Code section 1020 amending the eligibility requirements for appointment to people eligible to hold 
appointed civil offices; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission and The Parks, Recreation and Entertainment 

Commission and the Commissioners of those two Commissions, are appointed civil offices, and 
thus subject to Government Code section 1020 and as amended by SB 225; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council hereby desires to amend the eligibility requirements for both 

Commissions in order to conform to California State Law;  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1  Section 2.12.020 of the Hughson Municipal Code is amended to read in full as 
follows 

 “2.12.020 Eligibility. 
 

 To be eligible for appointment or to hold office as a member of The Planning 
Commission, a person shall be at least 18 years of age and a resident of the city.” 
 
  

Section 2  Subsection (A) of Section 2.14.030 of the Hughson Municipal Code is amended to 
read in full as follows: 
 
 “2.14.030 Commission appointment and qualifications.   
   
 “A. To be eligible for appointment or to hold office as a member of The Parks, 

Recreation and Entertainment Commission: (1) no fewer than three appointees shall be at 
least 18 years of age and a resident of the City of Hughson; and (2) no more than two 



 
1347142-1 

2 

appointees shall be a person at least 18 years of age that reside outside the city limits but 
within the 95326 zip code.”  

 
Section 3  If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or 
circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 
Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this ordinance are severable. The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
adopted this Ordinance irrespective of the validity of any particular portion thereof. 

Section 4  This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a 
manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty of care 
toward persons and property within or without the city so as to provide a basis of civil liability for 
damages, except as otherwise imposed by law. 

Section 5  Within fifteen (15) days after its final passage, the City Clerk shall cause this 
Ordinance to be published in full in accordance with California Government Code section 36933. 

Section 6  This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its final 
passage and adoption, provided it is published in a newspaper of general circulation at least fifteen 
(15) days prior to its effective date. 

 
The foregoing Ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the 

City Council of the City of Hughson held on February 10, 2020, and by a vote of the Council 
members present, further reading was waived. 

On motion of Councilperson _________________________, seconded by 
___________________________, the foregoing Ordinance was passed by the City Council of the 
City of Hughson at a regular meeting held on __________________, 2020, by the following votes: 

 
AYES:   _____________ 
 
NOES:  _____________ 
 

 ABSTENTIONS: _____________ 
 
 ABSENT:  _____________ 
 
       ______________________________ 
       JERAMY YOUNG, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
ASHTON GOSE, Deputy City Clerk 



 

  
 
Meeting Date: February 24, 2020  
Subject: Consideration of a Professional Services Agreement with 

Bartle Wells Associates for an Updated Wastewater Rate Study 
Presented By:  Lea Simvoulakis, Community Development Director 

 
Approved By: ____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendations:   
 
1. Adopt Resolution No. 2020-04, a resolution of the City Council of the City of 

Hughson, authorizing Bartle Wells Associates to perform an updated Wastewater 
Rate Study at a not-to-exceed amount of $18,490. 
 

2. Authorize the City Manager to execute the professional services agreement with 
Bartle Wells Associates, inclusive of any final edits by the City Attorney. 

 
Background and Overview: 
 
At the June 24, 2019 City Council meeting, the City Council requested that City staff 
have the 2009 Sewer Rate Study updated due to the significant decrease in the Sewer 
Operating Fund annual revenue.  
 
The City of Hughson contracted with Bartle Wells Associates in 2009 for a Sewer Rate 
Study.  The goal of this study was to assure repayment of the 20-year loan issued by 
the State Water Resources to build the Hughson Wastewater Treatment Plant, as well 
as to ensure that the fees set would cover the estimated costs of service, both capital 
and operational costs. 
 
In the fall of 2018, a business that provided a significant source of revenue to the Sewer 
Operating Fund ceased its operations in Hughson. As a result of this lost revenue, the 
Sewer Fund is currently operating in an annual deficit position. 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.5 
SECTION 4:  CONSENT CALENDAR 



Discussion: 
 
City staff are currently working on several options to bring the Sewer Operating Fund 
out of the annual operating deficit position. First, City staff are working with the City’s 
Economic Development Committee and Opportunity Stanislaus to ensure that new 
businesses are aware of this location is vacant and potentially available to rent or 
purchase. 
 
Additionally, City staff contacted the State Water Resources Control Board and 
requested a review of the terms of the Sewer Fund’s outstanding debt service.  The 
State Water Resources Control Board agreed to amend the loan term from a 20-year 
term to a 30-year term with no change in interest rate. An Agreement Amendment must 
be executed by the State Water Resources Control Board, Division on Financial 
Assistance before such changes can take effect.  City staff are also working on the 
possible refinancing and lowering of the interest rate on the Waste Water Expansion 
Project Loan which is issued at 3.4%.  
 
As requested by Council, City staff attempted to contact the California Rural Water 
Association for technical assistance and a fee study review; however, after multiple 
attempts were made through the contact form on the website, through email, and by 
phone, City staff were unable to gain assistance through this resource.   
 
Alternatively, City staff contacted Bartle Wells Associates since they authored the 2009 
Sewer Rate Study and are very familiar with the City of Hughson’s sewer system and 
rate structure.  Attached is a Professional Service Contract with the Scope of Work 
outlining a detailed work plan, taking into consideration recent court rulings and 
Proposition 218 compliance. 
 
Deliverables for the Rate Study Process include: 
 

- Project Initiation: Clarifying objectives; and reviewing data and assumptions 
- Financial Plan: Capital Improvement Plan prioritization; Fund Reserve 

Targets; and Financial and Rate projections 
- Cost Allocation: Allocate costs to customer groups 
- Rate Design: Analyze billing data; and evaluate rate alternatives and rate 

design 
- Outreach & Adoption: Build consensus, public outreach, and Proposition 218 

process 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
 
The proposal from Bartle Wells Associates has a not-to-exceed figure of $18,490 to 
provide an updated Sewer Rate Study.  If approved, funding will be appropriated in the 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Final Budget.    
 
 



 

CITY OF HUGHSON 
CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-04 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE HUGHSON CITY COUNCIL TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BARTLE 

WELLS ASSOCIATES TO PREPARE A COMPREHENSIVE WASTEWATER RATE 
STUDY UPDATE FOR THE CITY OF HUGHSON 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Hughson owns and operates a Wastewater Treatment 
Facility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Hughson seeks to update the 2009 Sewer Fee Study; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Bartle Wells Associates has provided continued support to the City in 
the area of Sewer Fund Fees; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hughson reasonably contemplates the ongoing necessity 
for administrative and technical support services in order to update the 2009 Sewer Fee 
Study.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Hughson City Council authorizes 
the City Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with the firm of Bartle 
Wells Associates for financial advisory services and utility rate consulting services in an 
amount not to exceed $18,490. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Hughson at its regular 
scheduled meeting held this 24th day of February 2020 by the following roll call votes:   
 

 

AYES:      
 
NOES:         
  
ABSTENTIONS:    
 
ABSENT:    

       
 

__________________________________  
  JERAMY YOUNG, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
ASHTON GOSE, Deputy City Clerk 
 

























 
Wastewater Rate Study 

Proposal 

June 21, 2019 

EXHIBIT A



 
 

 

   



 
 
 
 
June 21, 2019 
 
City of Hughson 
7018 Pine Street/PO Box 9 
Hughson, CA 95326 
 
Attn:  Raul Mendez, City Manager 
 
Re:  Proposal for Wastewater Rate Study Update 
 
Bartle Wells Associates is pleased to submit this proposal to prepare a comprehensive wastewater rate 
study  update  for  the  City  of  Hughson.  For more  than  50  years,  our  firm  has  specialized  in  providing 
independent financial and utility rate consulting services to California water and wastewater agencies. We 
offer an unmatched level of financial planning expertise and are the only firm in California to provide both 
financial advisory services for project financing as well as utility rate consulting services. 
 
In addition to working for the City on multiple occasions in the past, Bartle Wells Associates has extensive 
experience providing rate and fee studies for other central valley agencies. BWA has recently prepared 
wastewater rate studies for the Cities of Modesto, Patterson and Riverbank and an electricity and water 
rate study for Modesto Irrigation District. We will bring our knowledge gained from working on these local 
projects to our work for the City. 
 
We have helped a number of agencies develop strategic financial plans to address escalating costs related 
to operating and long‐term infrastructure needs.  We have also assisted many agencies in modifying their 
existing rate structures to provide a better balance of revenue stability, customer equity, and  compliance 
with  the evolving  interpretations of Proposition 218.   Our  rate studies are based on a comprehensive 
analysis  of  each  agency’s  costs,  customer base  characteristics,  and demands  to  ensure  rate  structure 
recommendations reflect local needs and objectives.  
 
Our proposal includes our project approach, scope of work, not to exceed project budget, schedule, and 
a description of our firm’s qualifications including our background, staffing table, and resumes.  
 
We are very interested in working with the City on this project and hope this proposal provides a suitable 
basis for our selection.   
 
Sincerely, 

 
Douglas Dove, PE, CIPMA    

Principal/ President           
 
 



 
 

 

   



 
 

 Table of Contents 
 

 

 

SECTION 1:  DETAILED WORK PLAN ..................................................................... 1 
TASK A.  PROJECT INITIATION & DATA COLLECTION ............................................................................... 1 

TASK B.  LONG‐RANGE FINANCIAL PLAN ................................................................................................. 2 

TASK C.  COST‐OF‐SERVICE ALLOCATION ................................................................................................. 3 

TASK D.  RATE DESIGN ............................................................................................................................. 4 

TASK E.  PRESENTATIONS & PUBLIC OUTREACH ..................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 2:  QUALIFICATIONS AND PERSONNEL .................................................. 8 
BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES ..................................................................................................................... 8 

PROJECT TEAM ....................................................................................................................................... 10 

RESUMES ................................................................................................................................................ 11 

SECTION 3:  REFERENCES ................................................................................... 14 

SECTION 4:  STUDY SCHEDULE ........................................................................... 16 

SECTION 5:  COST PROPOSAL ............................................................................ 17 

AVAILABILITY & FEES ........................................................................................ 18 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR DISCLOSURES .................................................................. 20 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE ................................................................................. 21 
  

   



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 1 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

Section 1:  Detailed Work Plan  
 
This section presents our methodology and proposed scope of services that we believe will form a sound 

basis for completing this assignment as well as a schedule to complete the scope.  We will work with the 

City to finalize a scope of services that meets the objectives and schedule desired.  Our completed study 

will provide a set of legally defensible documents that outline a comprehensive, reasonable financial plan 

attainable through sound, industry‐standard recommendations for the City.  Our proposal takes into 

account variable and fixed charges, different assumptions regarding future capital investments, recent 

court rulings, and Proposition 218 compliance.  Assistance from the project team will be required to gather 

data and to provide feedback on rate recommendations at regularly scheduled progress calls.  

 

 

 

 

 
 

TASK A.  PROJECT INITIATION & DATA COLLECTION 
 

1. Project Team Orientation 
To initiate our work, hold a kickoff meeting with City staff and others as appropriate, to accomplish the 

following: 

 Identify members of City staff, City Council members/subcommittees, engineering consultants, and 

other consultants/advisors who will participate in the project 

 Determine the roles and responsibilities of all project participants 

 Identify other parties who may have a significant interest in the project, such as community groups, 

business organizations, and large customers 

 Establish project schedule and key milestone dates 

 Confirm the key goals and expectations of the project team 

 

2. Investigation and Data Collection  

Assemble the information necessary to understand the wastewater system, finances, customers and usage, rate 

and fee structures, and legal agreements with other agencies.  Assistance and cooperation of staff will be 

needed to assemble the relevant background information.  The objectives of investigation and data collection 

are to develop a complete understanding of each utility and its costs, and to reach an agreement on basic 

assumptions to be used in the study.  Information to be reviewed includes the following: 

 

Clarify Objectives &  

Review Data & Assumptions 

 

CIP Prioritization 

Fund Reserve Targets 

Financial & Rate Projections 

Analyze Billing Data 

Evaluate Rate 

Alternatives 

& Rate Design 

Rate Study Process 

Build Consensus 

Public Outreach 

Proposition 218 Process 

Allocate Costs to 

Customer Groups 

Project 
Initiation

Financial      
Plan

Rate 
Design

Cost 
Allocation

Outreach & 
Adoption



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 2 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

 Cost  information:  budgets,  audits,  financial  statements,  internal  finance  projections,  capital 

improvement plans, and engineering master plans 

 Revenue sources: schedule of fees and rates, interest earnings, grants and/or debt proceeds 

 

 
 
 

TASK B.  LONG‐RANGE FINANCIAL PLAN 
 

1. Develop Forecasts and Projections 
Based on evaluation of the data assembled and input provided by staff and other members of the project 
team,  prepare  forecasts  and  projections  to  be  used  in  the  development  of  financial  projections  for  the 
wastewater enterprise.  Develop projections for the following areas (and others as appropriate): 
 

Capital Improvement Funding Needs:    Identify  latest capital  improvement plan costs by year.   Work with 
staff  to  identify  key  alternatives  for  financial  evaluation.    Based  on  input  from  City  staff,  determine  a 
reasonable amount to include for future, ongoing capital repairs and replacements.  BWA often recommends 
that agencies phase in funding for long‐term system rehabilitation as rates are gradually increased. 
 

Growth and Development/Redevelopment:  Evaluate historical growth trends and develop appropriate and 
conservative  assumption  for  future  development  and  redevelopment  that  can  be  incorporated  into  the 
financial plan/rate model.  Evaluate impact of faster and slower growth rates. 
 

Cost Escalation Factors:   Review historical cost trends and work with project team to develop reasonable 
cost escalation factors for both operating and capital expenditures.  Work with staff to estimate potential 
new  operating  costs,  such  as  new  staffing  projections  and  O&M  costs  related  to  planned  capital 
improvements, or costs for complying with future permit requirements. 
 

Review projections with City staff for agreements on assumptions, interpretation of data, and completeness 
of approach. 
 
2. Evaluate Financing Alternatives for Capital Improvements 
Evaluate options for financing proposed capital improvement projects.  Our evaluation will: 

 Estimate the amount and timing of any debt, if needed, to finance capital projects. 

 Evaluate  the  alternative  borrowing methods  available  including  state  and  federal  funding  programs, 
bonds, COPs, bank loans and lines of credit, and other options. 

 Recommend the appropriate type of debt and its term and structure (for financial planning purposes). 

 

 Project team contact list 

 Information needs list 

 Provide fee and charge recommendations 

 Meeting #1: Kickoff Meeting at City 

Project 
Initiation 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 3 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

 Evaluate possible combinations of financing methods, such as prudent use of pay‐as‐you‐go cash funding 
supplemented by debt financing, when appropriate 

 
3. Review and Update Fund Reserve Targets  
Evaluate the adequacy of  the City’s current  fund reserves.  
As  warranted,  identify  alternatives  and  update  minimum 
fund reserve targets based on updated operating and capital 
funding  projections.    Develop  an  implementation  plan  for 
achieving and maintaining the recommended reserve fund 
levels.   
 
4. Develop Long‐Range Cash Flow Projections 
BWA  will  develop  cash  flow  projections  showing  the 
financial position of  the City over the next  ten years.   The 
cash  flows will project  fund balances,  revenues, expenses, 
and  debt  service  coverage,  and  will  incorporate  the 
forecasts  developed  with  staff  input,  including  funding 
needs for future repairs and replacements.  After developing 
a base‐case cash flow scenario, we can develop alternatives for additional evaluation such as capital project 
alternatives,  project  financing alternatives and  the  impacts of different  levels  of  growth etc.   During  this 
phase,  BWA  will  work  closely  with  the  project  team  to  develop  financial  and  rate  projections  under 
alternative scenarios.  BWA typically recommends that rate increases be phased in over time to minimize the 
annual impact on ratepayers. 
 
5. Evaluate Financial Scenarios & Rate Increase Options 
Based on the cash flow projections, determine the annual revenue requirements and project overall required 
rate increases.  Evaluate the financial impact of various financial and rate adjustment alternatives, such as 
phasing in required rate increases over a number of years.  If appropriate, develop a reduced rate alternative 
and evaluate impacts on the City’s ability to fund capital projects.  
 

 

TASK C.  COST‐OF‐SERVICE ALLOCATION 
 

Task C is the “meat” of the rate study that will provide the legal justification for the rates and charges of the 

City.  BWA will allocate costs based on industry standard practice, guidance from recent court cases, and 

ease of implementation/practicality.  

 

The 10‐Year Financial Plan will 
serve as a financial roadmap for 
funding future operating and 
capital programs while 
supporting long‐term financial 
stability. 

 

 Evaluation of financing alternatives for capital improvements 
 Recommendation for minimum fund reserve targets 
 Development of ten-year financial projections and alternatives 
 Identification of alternative rate increase scenarios  
 Progress call 

Financial 
Plan 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 4 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

BWA will provide a detailed, functional cost allocation for operating, capital, debt service, fixed and variable 

costs.  Functionalized cost categories may include collection, treatment, and customer costs. BWA will 

determine the units of service and assign costs to each unit of service.  Typical units of service for the 

wastewater utilities are sewer flow and pollutant loading (BOD and TSS).  We may want to include nitrogen, 

phosphorous, and ammonia in order to accurately allocate costs. 

 

 
 
 
 

TASK D.  RATE DESIGN 
 

1. Legal Review of the Existing Wastewater Rate Structure 

Perform a legal review of the existing wastewater rate structure and discuss advantages and disadvantages 

compared to other rate approaches.  Summarize and discuss finding with the project team.  Review the 

existing rate models and most recent rate update.  Evaluate the cost allocation and rate design included in 

the model for compatibility with BWA recommendations. 

 

2. Conduct Rate Fee Survey of Comparable Utility Agencies  

Review and summarize other regional and/or comparable agencies.  Summarize results in easily 

understandable tables and/or charts.   

 

3. Analyze Utility Consumption Data 

Evaluate current and historical water usage, winter water consumption for sewer billed flow, utility billing 

data, and production data to determine reasonable and conservative estimates of demand to use in 

developing rate options.  Ideally, we would prefer to analyze three years of utility billing data in order to 

determine slightly conservative demand projections.   
 

4. Identify Utility Rate Structure Modifications and Alternatives 

Identify alternative rate structures or modifications to the City’s existing rates designed to improve equity 

and/or better achieve your objectives.  Discuss pros and cons of different rate structure options and their 

general impacts on different types of customers.  Rate structure options will be refined as the study 

progresses based on input from the study project team and will be evaluated to ensure that any 

modifications can be accommodated within the City’s billing systems.  Some potential rate structure 

modifications may include the following: 

 Redesigning how much of the revenue is collected from fixed vs. variable charges.  

 

 Determine units of service  

 Cost allocation analysis 

 Progress call 

 

Cost 
Allocation 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 5 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

 Establishing different wastewater rates for different customer classes with different effluent 

strength characteristics. 

 

5. Evaluate Customer Equity 

Review the fairness of each rate and charge across all 

customer groups.  Confirm that all customers are charged 

for service proportional to how they use the utility systems.  

If desired, review options to aid in affordability for 

disadvantaged customers.  Compare typical/sample bills 

from each customer class to the bills of other local public 

utilities.  As needed, seek input from vocal customers such 

as business groups and developers.  
   

6. Develop Preliminary and Final Rate Recommendations 

Based on the rate analysis and the financial plan update, develop draft rate recommendations.  The 

recommendations include a multi‐year phase in of both overall rate increases and proposed rate structure 

adjustments.  Review preliminary recommendations and key alternatives with the project team.  Based on 

input received, develop final draft utility rate recommendations.   

 

Final rate recommendations will be designed to a) fund the long‐term costs of providing service, b) be fair 

and equitable to all customers, c) provide a prudent balance of fixed and variable rates, and d) comply with 

the substantive requirements of Proposition 218 and recent court cases.  Based on input from staff, develop 

a plan for implementing any rate structure modifications and/or rate adjustments. 
 

7. Evaluate Rate Impacts on Customers 

Calculate the rate impacts of each rate alternative on a range of utility customers (e.g. different customer 

classes, customers with different levels of use, seasonal impacts etc.).  Work with the project team to 

identify customer and usage profiles to use for calculating the rate impacts.  Discuss additional rate 

structure adjustments that may reduce the impact on certain customers if warranted and/or requested by 

the project team. 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 Legal review of rate design 

 Rate survey 

 Analysis of billing data 

 Proposed rate alternatives and impacts on customers 

 Meeting #2: Review draft findings 

Rates will be developed based 
on a cost‐of‐service approach 
designed to equitably recover 
the cost of providing service to 
all customers. 

Rate  
Design 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 6 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

TASK E.  PRESENTATIONS & PUBLIC OUTREACH 
 

1. Meetings 

Meet with the project team to present findings, discuss alternatives and their impacts, gain ongoing input, 

and develop and hone recommendations.  Meet with and present findings to City Council.  Our proposal 

includes a total of four (4) trips to the City.  The final schedule and number of meetings will be determined 

with input from the project team.  A preliminary meeting/presentation schedule could include: one staff 

meeting, one community meeting, one workshop/presentation with the City Council/ public, and the 

Proposition 218 hearing.  The meetings can be determined as needed by the City (e.g., a Council workshop 

could be substituted for a project meeting).  BWA will participate in conference calls as needed.  Additional 

project meetings, meetings/workshops with committees and citizens groups, may also be included if 

warranted by staff.  Meetings can also be combined, e.g. progress meetings can be scheduled on the same 

day as Council meetings, to reduce costs.   

 

Presentations will provide brief background and study objectives, make a clear case why rate increases are 

needed, describe the rate structure (and potentially key alternatives) approved by the project team, show 

rate impacts on various customer profiles, present findings of the rate survey, and discuss related financial 

and policy recommendations.  We have substantial experience in presenting our findings to both technical 

and governing boards and to audiences without a background in utility rates or finances.   

 

2. Prepare Draft and Final Reports  

Submit a draft summary report for project team review and feedback.  The report will summarize key findings 

and recommendations and discuss key alternatives when applicable.  Receive input on draft report from the 

project team and Council.  Prepare final reports incorporating feedback received.  We will provide copies of both 

the draft and final reports and electronic versions to the entities.  The final report will specifically include but is 

not limited to:  

 Executive summary highlighting the key points of the study 

 Introduction with a brief description of the wastewater system and service area 

 Overview of financial operations for the last five years, 

 A description of the capital improvement program, including State and Federal requirements; a ten‐

year summary of proposed capital expenditures with a statement regarding operating needs, 

regulatory requirements, and reasonableness of cost estimates 

 Ten‐year revenue, expense and cashflow projections 

 Customer characteristics overview 

 Detailed explanation of the cost‐of‐service and rate design process 

 Rate scenarios with an assessment of each scenario regarding customer equity, revenue stability, 

compliance with regulations, implementation difficulty, etc.  

 Regional wastewater rate comparisons 

 Assessment of other charges 

 Schedule of rate increase for 5‐year adoption and 10‐year projections 

 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 7 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

3. Rate Model  

BWA will provide a user‐friendly model customized to the needs of the City. BWA prioritizes simplicity when 

developing models. BWA’s philosophy is that models should flow in a way that is easy to understand, be 

reliable, and provide relevant outputs. The model BWA provides will have all relevant inputs and outputs as 

well as the capability to able to handle “what‐if” scenarios. 

 

4. Compliance with Proposition 218 

Proposition 218 establishes requirements for adopting or increasing property‐related fees and charges.  In 

July 2006, the California Supreme Court ruled that water rates are subject to Proposition 218 (Articles XIIIC 

and XIIID of the State constitution).  Proposition 218 requires that the City: 1) mail notification of proposed 

rate increases and the date, time, and place of public hearing to all affected property owners (and 

potentially ratepayers who are renters that pay sewer bills); 2) hold a public hearing not less than 45 days 

after the notices are mailed; and 3) subject the rate increases to majority protest; if more than 50% of 

property owners submit written protests, the proposed rate increases cannot be adopted.  

 

BWA remains available to assist staff with drafting the Proposition 218 rate notice.  BWA recommends the 

notice go beyond the minimum legal requirements and provide clear and concise explanation of the 

reasons for any rate adjustments.  We have found that ratepayers are generally much more accepting of 

rate increases when they understand why they are being implemented.  

 

5. Public Education and Consensus‐Building 

Rate and fee adjustments are often controversial.  BWA has extensive experience developing clear 

presentations that facilitate public understanding of the need for rate increases.  We understand the 

importance of building consensus and public acceptance for our recommendations and can assist staff in 

developing public education materials. Holding community workshops or open houses are effective tools to 

help to help the community understand the needs of the agency. BWA is always willing to support and 

attend additional community outreach meetings on a time and expense basis. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 Draft and Final Reports and Rate Model 

 Proposition 218 public hearing notice 

 Meeting #3: Rate Workshop with Council / Community 

 Meeting #4: Proposition 218 Public Hearing 

Outreach & 
Adoption 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 8 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

Section 2:  QUALIFICATIONS AND PERSONNEL 
 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 
Leaders in Water, Wastewater & Stormwater Rates and Finance 

Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) is an independent financial advisory firm with expertise in the areas of water, 

wastewater, and stormwater finance.   BWA was established in 1964 and has over 50 years of experience 

advising cities, special districts, and other agencies on the complexities and challenges in public finance.  We 

have advised over 500 public agency clients throughout California and the western United States.  We have 

a diversity of abilities and experience to evaluate all types of financial issues faced by local governments and 

to recommend the best and most‐practical solutions. 
 

Bartle  Wells  Associates  has  a  highly‐qualified  professional  team.    Our 

education  and  backgrounds  include  finance,  civil  engineering,  business, 

public administration, public policy, and economics.   
 

BWA specializes in three professional services: utility rate and fee studies, 

financial plans, and project financing.  We are one of the few independent 

financial advisors providing all three of these interrelated services to public 

agencies. 
 

RATE AND FEE STUDIES   Our rate studies employ a cost‐of‐service approach and are designed to maintain 

the long‐term financial health of a utility enterprise while being fair to all customers.  We develop practical 

recommendations that are easy to implement and often phase in rate adjustments over time to minimize the 

impact on ratepayers.  We also have extensive experience developing impact fees that equitably recover the 

costs of infrastructure required to serve new development.  BWA has completed hundreds of utility  rate and 

fee studies.  We have helped communities implement a wide range of rate structures and are knowledgeable 

about the legal requirements governing rates and impact fees.   We develop clear, effective presentations 

and  have  represented  public  agencies  at  hundreds  of  public  hearings  to  build  consensus  for  our 

recommendations. 
 

FINANCIAL PLANS   Our financial plans provide agencies with a flexible 
roadmap for funding long‐term operating and capital needs.  We evaluate 

the  wide  range  of  financing  options  available,  develop  a  plan  that 

recommends the best financing approach, and clearly identify the sources 

of  revenue  for  funding  projects  and  repaying  any  debt.   We  also  help 

agencies develop prudent financial policies, such as fund reserve targets, 

to support sound financial management.  BWA has developed over 2,000 

utility  enterprise  financial  plans  to  help  public  agencies  fund  their 

operating  and  capital  programs,  meet  debt  service  requirements,  and 

maintain long‐term financial health. 

 

 

Our offices are located in Berkeley, California 
 in a circa 1900 Victorian Building. 

BWA Key Services 

 

 

 

 

 Rate & Fee Studies 

 Financial Plans 

 Project Financing 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 9 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

PROJECT FINANCING   Our project financing experience includes over 300 

bond sales and numerous bank loans, lines of credit, and a range of state and 

federal grant and loan programs.  We generally recommend issuing debt via a 

competitive  sale  process  to  achieve  the  lowest  cost  financing  possible.    To 

date, we have helped California agencies obtain over $5 billion of financing via bonds, bank loans/private 

placements, lines of credit, low‐rate State Revolving Fund Loans, and other funding programs.  We work only 

for public agencies; we are independent financial advisors and do not buy, trade, or resell bonds.  Our work 

is concentrated on providing  independent advice that enables our clients to  finance their projects on the 

most favorable terms—lowest interest rates, smallest issue size, and greatest flexibility. 

 

Bartle Wells Associates  is  a  charter member of  the National Association of Municipal Advisors  (NAMA), 

which establishes strict criteria for  independent advisory firms.   All of 

our  lead  consultants  are Certified  Independent Professional Municipal 

Advisors and are Registered Municipal Advisors. 

 

  Bartle Wells Associates  is  committed  to providing  value  and  the best 

advice  to  our  clients.    Our  strength  is  quality—the  quality  of  advice, 

service, and work we do for all our clients. 

 

 EXPERIENCE   BWA has extensive experience developing long‐term 

financial plans, utility rates, and capacity fees for public agencies from 

all areas of California and the western U.S.  In recent years, we have 

completed assignments for many agencies including:  

 

Sample Water/Sewer/ Stormwater Districts 

 San Miguel Community Services District 

 Rio Linda/ Elverta Community Water District 

 Monterey One Water 

 Alameda County Water District 

 Cambria Community Services District 

 Sonoma County Water Agency 

 Mid‐Peninsula Water District 

 Silicon Valley Clean Water  

 Napa Sanitation District 

 East Bay Municipal Utility District 

 Sausalito‐Marin City Sanitary District 

 Union Sanitary District 

 Novato Sanitary District 

 Montara Water & Sanitary District  

 West Valley Sanitation District 

 Joshua Basin Water District 

 Ramona Municipal Water District 

 South San Luis Obispo County San District 

 San Francisco Public Utilities Commission 

Sample Cities 

 City of Modesto 

 City of Hughson 

 City of Fresno 

 City of Davis 

 City of Santa Barbara 

 City of Solvang 

 City of Morro Bay 

 City of Berkeley 

 City of San Carlos 

 City of Monterey 

 City of Sunnyvale 

 City of Millbrae 

 City of Vacaville 

 City of Santa Clara 

 City of Glendale 

 Town of Woodside 

 City of Calistoga 

 City of San Mateo 

 City of Mountain View 

 BWA has served 
over 500 public 

agencies 
throughout 

California and 
the western 

     United 
States. 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 10 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

PROJECT TEAM 

BWA  uses  a  team  approach  for  most  projects,  typically  assigning  two 

consultants to each assignment, including at least one principal consultant.  

Our general project approach is to work closely with staff and other members 

of  the  project  team,  identify  objectives,  set  milestones,  have  frequent 

communication, and remain flexible to resolve unanticipated issues.  

Bartle  Wells  Associates  has  a  highly  qualified  professional  team.    Our 

educational backgrounds include finance, civil engineering, business, public 

administration, public policy, and economics.  Bartle Wells Associates has a 

long track record of completing projects on time and on or under budget. 

 

Bartle Wells Associates will perform all work related to this assignment and 

does plan to use any subcontractors for this project.   Our consulting staff 

has availability to assist on this project as needed to ensure all project work 

and deliverables are completed on schedule. 

 

Doug Dove, Project Manager 
Doug Dove is President of BWA and one of BWA’s principal consultants. He 

has more than 30 years of professional experience, specializing in all areas of public 

finance, including utility rate setting, capacity fee implementation, strategic financial 

planning  and  infrastructure  financing.  He  has  extensive  experience  developing 

strategic financial plans and utility rate studies and has consulted for more than 150 

California agencies.  Doug has substantial experience working with public agency staff 

and governing bodies  to build understanding and  consensus  for  recommendation.  

Doug will  serve as  the primary contact person and manage  the day‐to‐day project 

work.    He  will  be  involved  in  all  aspects  of  the  project  from  kickoff  to 

implementation. 
 

Michael DeGroot, Project Consultant 
Michael DeGroot is a consultant with over five year of experience developing long‐

term financial models and utility rates based on a cost of service approach. Michael 

has worked with the City of Hughson in prior years to update the City’s water rates.  

He will be involved in analytical support for the project. 
 

 
	

   

 

Project Manager 
 Doug Dove, PE, CIPMA 

 

Project Consultant 
 Michael DeGroot 

Analytical Support 
 Additional BWA Staff 
Available as Needed 

 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 11 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

RESUMES 
	

DOUGLAS R. DOVE 
Principal Consultant 

Douglas  R.  Dove  is  President  of  Bartle Wells  Associates  and  directs  the  operation  of  the  firm  while 
maintaining a principal consultant’s role.  With over 30 years of consulting experience, he specializes in 
utility rate analysis, strategic financial planning and project financing.  Mr. Dove has developed utility rate 
structures and financing plans for a wide variety of public infrastructure programs.  He has managed the 
procurement of over $1 billion in municipal debt and over $300 million in state and federal grants and 
low‐interest loans.  Mr. Dove frequently shares his expertise and has given presentations at conferences 
including the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA), the American Water Works Association 
(AWWA), the California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA), the California Municipal Rates Group 
(CMRG),  the  California  Special  District’s  Association  (CSDA),  the  California  Municipal  Treasurers 
Association (CMTA), the California Water Environment Association (CWEA) and Water Reuse.  By special 
request  in  July 2015, Mr. Dove made a presentation  to  the California Water Resources Control Board 
regarding water conservation pricing.  Mr. Dove is also a published author of a water rate paper in the 
Journal of the American Water Works Association (Implementing Consumption‐Based Fixed Rates in Davis, 
Calif.). Mr. Dove’s expertise also includes assisting agencies in securing state and federal grants and loans 
and in issuing certificates of participation (COPs), revenue bonds, general obligation bonds, assessment 
district bonds, Marks‐Roos revenue bonds, CFD (Mello‐Roos) bonds, private placement loans and other 
types of debt. Mr. Dove recently finished his term on the board of directors of the National Association of 
Municipal Advisors (NAMA). 
 

Education 

M.S., Civil Engineering ‐ University of California, Berkeley 

B.S., Civil Engineering – Drexel University, Philadelphia, PA 

 

Representative Projects 

 City of Placerville: Wastewater rate study and capacity fees 

 City of Hughson: Water and wastewater rate studies, financings for water facilities and wastewater 

treatment plant upgrade, development impact fees 

 Del Paso Manor Water District: Comprehensive water financial plan and rate study. 

 Browns Valley ID: Water rate study 

 Rio Linda/ Elverta Community Water District: Comprehensive water financial plan, connection fee 

and rate study. 

 Madera County, CA: Rate studies for twenty‐three of the county’s water and sewer special service 

districts 

 City of Imperial, CA: Water and wastewater financial plans and rate studies. 

 East Bay Municipal Utility District: Comprehensive water rate study and AB 1600 capacity fee review, 

Wastewater cost‐of‐service review and capacity fee review, various other financial studies 

 City of Santa Barbara: Comprehensive water rate and capacity fee study. 

 Napa‐Berryessa Resort Improvement District:  Developed financing plan for water and wastewater 

public‐private  partnership  (P3).    Prepared  assessment  engineers  report.    Formed  an  assessment 

district and secured $11.1 million in federal funding from US Department of Agriculture. 

 City of American Canyon: Comprehensive, multi‐year water and wastewater rate study. 

 City  of  Davis:  Comprehensive  water  rate  study  developed  with  a  15‐member  Water  Advisory 

Committee.  Completed a water capacity fee study for the City as well. 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 12 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

 City of Modesto:  Provided  rate  expert  support  in wastewater  rate  litigation.    After  settlement  of 

litigation, developed water and wastewater cost of service and capacity fee studies. 

 Newhall County Water District: Provided rate expert litigation support in water rate litigation. 

 City  of  Monterey: Developed  financing  plan  and  rate  study  for  $20  million  wastewater  pipeline 

rehabilitation project. 

 San Miguel Community Services District, CA: Water and wastewater financial plans and rate studies.  

 City of Santa Clara: Wastewater rate and capacity fee study. 

 City of Hesperia:  Comprehensive water and wastewater financial plan and rate study. 

 City of Lemon Grove:  Water and wastewater rate studies and five‐year financing plan. 

 City of Brawley: Water and wastewater rate studies and financing plans. 

 City of Gilroy: Water and wastewater rate studies. 

 City of Patterson:  Water and wastewater rate studies and five‐year financing plans. 

 West Valley  Sanitation District  (Campbell,  CA):   Wastewater  rate  study,  financing plan  and bond 

issuance.  

 City of Ontario/Ontario Redevelopment Agency: financial advisor on $134.3 million in development 

refunding and new money issues (2), which included financing for the Ontario Convention Center. 

 City of Calistoga:  Long range utility financial plan, water and wastewater rates, secured financing for 

WW treatment plant upgrade ($6 million SRF loan, $3 million Small Community Grant, $3.5 million 

revenue bonds). 

 El Dorado Irrigation District:  Water and wastewater rate studies. 

 Lake  Arrowhead  Community  Services  District:    Financial  master  plan,  $28 million  revenue  bond 

refinancing and water and wastewater rate studies.  

 California Statewide Communities Development Authority:  Financial advisor for statewide pooled 

revenue bond program (over $250 million issued for over 32 borrowers). 

 South Bay Water Recycling Program, Phases 1 & 2:  Financial plan and rate study for $200+ million 

regional (San Jose area) wastewater recycling program. 

 City  of  Tulare:    Financial  advisor  to  the  city,  sale  of  $63  million  in  bonds  (3  issues),  water  and 

wastewater rate studies. 

 Big Bear Area Regional Wastewater Agency:  Regional wastewater rate study, sale of bonds (2 issues) and 

bank loans (2 loans). 

 

Professional Memberships 

 National Association of Municipal Advisors (former Board Member) 

 League of California Cities 

 American Water Works Association 

 Association of California Water Agencies 

 California Water Environment Association 

 California Association of Sanitation Agencies 

 California Special Districts Association 

 Water Reuse Association 

 

Certifications 

Certified Independent Professional Municipal Advisor (CIPMA), Registered Professional Engineer (PE) in 

California (PE# 45642) and MSRB ‐Registered Municipal Advisor – Series 50



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 13 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

MICHAEL J. DEGROOT 
 
Consultant  
Michael DeGroot is a consultant and registered Municipal Advisor with Bartle Wells Associates with 
over five years of experience.  He works closely with City staff, engineers, lawyers, and other 
consultants to develop equitable rate structures for water and sewer enterprises. Mr. DeGroot 
specializes in developing long‐term financial plans, meter and commodity rates, and capacity fees 
for Cities and special Districts.  
 
Education 

B.S., Business Administration – U.C. Berkeley Walter A. Haas School of Business, Berkeley, CA 
 
Representative Projects 

 City of Santa Barbara: Water rate study and water and sewer capacity fees. 

 City of Fresno: Water and sewer capacity fees. 

 City of Foster City: Water and sewer rate study and alternative rate structure analysis. 

 Fairfield‐Suisun Sewer District: Sewer rate and capacity fee study. 

 West Valley Sanitation District: Detailed financial plan, including debt funding alternatives for 
significant expenditure projections related to the $2 billion wastewater facility upgrade. 

 City of Benicia: Sewer rate analysis and drought option. 

 Stege Sanitary District: Sewer rate study. 

 Palmdale Water District: Water rate study. 

 City of California City: Water and sewer rates, impact fees, and miscellaneous charges. 

 City of Palmdale: Sewer rate study. 

 Crestline Sanitation District: Sewer rate study. 

 Malaga County Water District: Water and sewer rate study and capacity fees. 

 Sutter Community Services District: Water rate study and financial plan. 

 City of Hughson: Water rate study and SRF loan support. 

 Grizzly Flats CSD: Water rate study. 

 City of Santa Clarita: Feasibility study of the City’s takeover and operation of its sewer 
enterprise from LACSD. 

 Mariposa County: Water and sewer financial plans for six utilities and funding plan for roads. 

 City of Solvang: Water and sewer rate studies and capacity fees. Storm drain funding memo. 

 City of Pacifica: Sewer rate and capacity fee study. 

 Root Creek Water District: Benefit Assessment District formation support. 

 City of Placerville: Water and wastewater rate study. 

 City of Angels Camp: Water and wastewater rate study. 

 Castro Valley Sanitary District: Financial plan and financial adviser for revenue bond issue. 

 Oro Loma Sanitary District: Financial plan and financial adviser for revenue bond issue. 

 Marina Coast Water District: Water and wastewater capacity fee study. 

 City of Patterson: Water rate study. Water, wastewater, and stormwater capacity fee study. 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 14 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

Section 3:  References 

 

City of Patterson, CA 
The City of Patterson  (the City)  is  a  general  law City  located  in western Stanislaus 

County with a population of approximately 21,000.  The City owns and operates its 

own water and wastewater systems.  In October 2009, the City retained Bartle Wells 

Associates to develop a long‐term financial plans and rate recommendations for the 

water and sewer enterprises.   

Both the water and sewer enterprises were facing significant capital improvement projects for the next 

10 years.  Major water projects included developing the non‐potable water system, and for sewer, the 

capital  program was  largely  comprised of biosolids handling and  the  treatment plant  expansion.    The 

objective was to implement rates that would enable the City to fund the projects through State loans, 

grants, and debt financing.   

Our study included five‐years of rate adjustments designed to keep rates in line with cost inflation while 

providing  sufficient  revenues  for  the City's  operating  and  capital  programs.    BWA also  recommended 

several adjustments to the water rate structure including aligning the fixed rates with the American Water 

Works Association’s (AWWA) standard meter ratios and revising the tier breakpoints and adding a fourth 

tier to better distribute water sales.  The tier breakpoints were based on historical water consumption 

and designed to minimize the impact on residential customers who use low to average consumption while 

encouraging  conservation.    For  sewer  rates,  we  recommended  increasing  the  consumption  rate  for 

commercial and industrial customers by the same percentage as the fixed charge.  In previous years, the 

consumption rate for non‐residential customers had not been escalated.   

In 2013, BWA principal Douglas Dove provided on‐call infrastructure financing and utility rate consulting 

services in connection with the City’s review of funding alternatives for future infrastructure projects.  Mr. 

Dove assisted city staff and consultant Pacific Municipal Consultants in presenting funding alternatives to 

the City Council in closed session meetings. 

BWA  is  currently working with  the City  to update  the development  impact  fees  and evaluating other 

alternatives to ensure that growth pays their fair share of infrastructure projects. 

Solid Waste Rate Study: BWA recently assisted the city in updating its solid waste rates including garbage, 

recycling and greenwaste collection services. 

Agency Contact:  

Mike Willet, Director of Public Works  

 (209) 895‐8065 

mwillet@ci.patterson.ca.us 

 
 

 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 15 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

City of Modesto, CA 
In 2015, BWA was retained to work with the City and the Industrial customers to develop a new 

wastewater rate structure based on the 2014 Tolling Agreement. Working closely with an accountant 

hired by the City’s large industrial customers, BWA developed a separate large industrial wastewater 

rate structure and capacity fee schedule for cannery customers. BWA also developed new rates 

reflecting the City’s tertiary treatment stream and secondary treatment “scalping.” We met with 

stakeholder groups, the wastewater master planning engineering team, Finance Committee, and City 

Council on many occasions to vet our recommendations and gain consensus. Our rate study was 

implemented by City Council April 2016. 

 

In 2015, the City retained BWA to conduct a comprehensive water rate study.  The City had not raised 

rates since 2013 and experienced reduced revenue due to drought conditions. BWA developed drought 

surcharges and analyzed individualized rate structures for each of the City’s outlying service areas.  A 

Proposition 218 hearing to adopt proposed rates was successfully completed in Fall 2016. 

 

Agency Contact:  

William Wong, P.E., Sr. Engineer 

(209) 571‐5801 

wwong@modestogov.com 

 

 

 

 

Additional References are Available Upon Request



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 16 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

 

Section 4:  Study Schedule 
 

Provided below is a draft timeframe for completion of the Project.  BWA will work with the City to develop 

a final schedule designed to meet the City’s objectives. BWA has the capacity to complete the projected 

on a compressed timeline if necessary. 

 

Proposed Project Schedule 

  

 

   

 PROJECT TASK

Research

10‐Year Financial Plans

Cost of Service Rate Analysis

Draft, Revised, & Final Reports

Kickoff & Project Team Meetings 

Council Meeting and 218 Hearing 

Note: Individual project milestones will be established based on 

consultation with the project team.

JUL/AUG SEP/OCT NOV/DEC



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 17 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

Section 5:  Cost Proposal 
 

Provided below is a draft breakdown of our budget by task.  We remain available to work with the City 

to refine the scope and budget to meet the City’s objectives and expectations. 

  

 

   

Estimated D. Dove M. DeGroot Total

Hours @ $255/hr @ $155/hr Cost

TASK A. PROJECT INITIATION & DATA 10 3 7 $1,850

TASK B. LONG‐RANGE FINANCIAL PLAN 18 6 12 $3,390

TASK C. COST ALLOCATION 15 5 10 $2,825

TASK D. RATE DESIGN 15 5 10 $2,825

TASK E. PRESENTATIONS and REPORT  40 10 30 $7,200

   SUBTOTAL HOURS 98 29 69 $18,090

ESTIMATED NOT‐TO‐EXCEED EXPENSES $400

   TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $18,490

Sewer Rate Study



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 18 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

AVAILABILITY & FEES 
 
1. Bartle Wells Associates is prepared to begin work upon authorization to proceed.  

2. During the project development period, Bartle Wells Associates will be available at all reasonable 
times and on reasonable notice for meetings and for consultation with staff, attorneys, consulting 
engineers, and others as necessary. 

3. Bartle  Wells  Associates  will  perform  all  work  related  to  the  assignment.    Douglas  Dove,  a  firm 
principal and president, will be assigned as project manager on this assignment.  He will serve as the 
lead contact person for BWA and will be involved with the project a day‐to‐day basis.  Doug will be 
assisted by Michael DeGroot, project consultant. This project team may be assisted by other BWA 
analysts as needed. 

4. The fees for services outlined in this proposal will not exceed $18,090 plus direct expenses estimated 
not to exceed $400.  The total project cost for the sewer rate study will not exceed $18,490.  The fee 
is based on the following assumptions: 

a. All necessary information will be provided by the City in a timely manner. 

b. Development of a draft, final draft, and final versions of tables, presentations, and reports.  Time 
and expenses involved in revising tables and assumptions may constitute additional services if 
not achievable within the budget. 

c. Up  to  four  trips  to  the  City  for  meetings  and/or  presentations.    Additional  meetings  or 
presentations may constitute additional services if not achievable within the budget.   

5. Progress payments and direct expenses are payable monthly on a time and materials basis as the 
work proceeds as provided in our Billing Rate Schedule 2019, which will remain in effect through the 
duration of this assignment.    

6. Bartle Wells Associates will maintain in force, during the full term of the assignment, insurance as 
provided in the Certificate of Insurance attached. 

7. If the project  is terminated for any reason, we are to be reimbursed for professional services and 
direct expenses incurred up to the time we receive notification of such termination. 

8. This proposal may be withdrawn or amended if not accepted within 90 days of its date. 

9. We will not require a formal contract of employment and will consider a  letter or e‐mail from an 
appropriate official as sufficient authority to proceed. 

 



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 19 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

 

     BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 

     BILLING RATE SCHEDULE 2019 

     Rates Effective 1/1/2019 
 

Professional Services 

Financial Analyst I ................................................................................................. $105 per hour 

Financial Analyst II ................................................................................................ $130 per hour 

Consultant ............................................................................................................. $155 per hour 

Senior Consultant .................................................................................................. $185 per hour 

Senior Project Manager ........................................................................................ $215 per hour 

Principal Consultant .............................................................................................. $255 per hour 
 
 

The hourly rates for professional services include all overhead and indirect expenses.  Bartle Wells Associates 

does not charge  for administrative support  services.   Expert witness,  legal  testimony, or other  special 

limited assignments will be billed at one and one‐half times the consultant’s hourly rate. 

 

The above rates will be in effect through December 31, 2018 at which time they will be subject to change. 

 

Direct Expenses 

Subconsultants will be billed at cost plus ten percent.  Word processing and computer‐assisted services 

related  to  official  statement  production  are  charged  as  direct  expenses  at  $75  per  hour.    Other 

reimbursable direct expenses  incurred on behalf of  the agency will be billed at  cost plus  ten percent.  

These reimbursable costs include, but are not limited to: 
 

 Travel, meals, lodging   Automobile mileage 

 Printing and photocopying   Messenger services and mailing costs 

 Special statistical analysis   Graphic design and photography 

 Outside computer services   Special legal services 

 Bond ratings   Legal advertisements 

 

Insurance 

Bartle Wells Associates maintains insurance in the amounts and coverage as provided in the attached schedule 

of insurance.  Additional or special insurance, licensing, or permit requirements beyond what is shown on the 

schedule of insurance are billed in addition to the contract amount. 

 

Payment 

Fees are typically billed monthly for the preceding month, and will be payable within 30 days of the date 

of the invoice.  A late charge of 1.0 percent per month may be applied to balances unpaid after 60 days. 

   



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 20 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR DISCLOSURES 
 

This section provides certain disclosures required by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) 

regarding our duties as a Municipal Advisor to the extent any such duties apply to this assignment. 

* Bartle  Wells  Associates  will  provide  advice  and  conduct  activities  with  a  “duty  of  care”  and  a 
“fiduciary duty” to the District.  Our role and responsibilities during this engagement will continue through 
the completion of the project. 

* Bartle Wells  Associates  is  a  registered Municipal Advisor with  the  Securities  and  Exchange 
Commission  (SEC  Registration  No.  867‐00740)  and  the  Municipal  Securities  Rulemaking  Board 
(MSRB ID K0414).   

* Bartle Wells  Associates  has  never  been  cited  for  any  legal  or  disciplinary  action  regarding 
municipal advisory activities.  

* Bartle Wells Associates has not and will not receive any compensation from any third party 
seeking  to  provide  services,  municipal  securities  transactions,  or  municipal  financial  products 
related to this transaction.  BWA or any of its employees will not engage in any activities that would 
produce a direct or  indirect financial gain for  the firm other than compensation for our services 
identified in this proposal. 

* Bartle Wells Associates is not aware of any conflicts of interest that would affect our ability to 
provide independent and objective advice and Municipal Advisory services in a manner consistent 
with the requirements of MSRB Rule G‐42. 

* The website address for the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) is www.MSRB.org.  
The MSRB’s website provides a municipal advisory client brochure that describes the protections 
that may be provided by the MSRB rules and how to file a complaint with an appropriate regulatory 
authority.  The municipal advisory client brochure is accessible via a link on www.MSRB.org or can 
be downloaded from http://www.msrb.org/~/media/Files/Resources/MSRB‐MA‐Clients‐Brochure. 

 

   



 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES     Page 21 
City of Hughson ‐ Wastewater Rate Study Proposal 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE 
 

 

 

 
 

 



 

  
 
Meeting Date: February 24, 2020 
Subject: Adopt Resolution No. 2020-05, Approving the First 

Amendment to the Professional Service Agreement with 
Harris & Associates for Assessment District 
Administration Services 

Enclosure: Professional Service Agreement, Amendment 1 
Presented By:  Lea C. Simvoulakis, Community Development Director 

 
Approved By: _______________________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommandation: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2020-05, approving the First Amendment to the Professional 
Service Agreement with Harris and Associates for assessment district administration 
services. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
On March 28, 2016, the City Council approved a Professional Services Agreement 
with Harris & Associates for assessment district administration services.  This 
agreement identified an expiration date of February 28, 2017 subject to the City’s 
right to exercise three options to extend the expiration date by one year each year 
up until February 28, 2020.   Since the signing of the original contract, the City has 
exercised its right to extend the contract for each additional year through the current 
year. City staff would like to extend the end of this contract for two more years.  
       
Discussion: 
 
City staff is seeking City Council approval to amend the Professional Service 
Agreement with Harris & Associates for Assessment District administration services 
to extend the term for two more years. Currently, Rick Clark is the Project Manager 
and the City’s primary contact with Harris and Associates.  Mr. Clark has over 26 
years of professional experience in the area of public finance and assessment 
administration. Staff has worked well with Mr. Clark for the last four years.  The City 
Council has given the general direction to periodically re-evaluate all contracted 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.6 
SECTION 4:  CONSENT CALENDAR 



 

services and contract service providers. While the current contract has been in place 
for four years, City staff is requesting that the Council renew the existing contract for 
two more years in order to implement the changes made to the assessment districts’ 
budgets for the 2019-2020 fiscal year.  Mr. Clark worked closely with the Community 
Development Director and the Finance and Administrative Services Director during 
the last filing season to overhaul the existing assessment district budgets. 
Continuing to work with Mr. Clark this year will provide the ease of consistency for 
both departments in order to ensure that funds are being used appropriately and that 
budgets accurately reflect the work done in each assessment district.  Additionally, 
City staff and Harris & Associates are in the process of running a Council-approved 
Proposition 218 process.  The Proposition 218 process will add an annual escalator 
to seven districts and a new rate assessment for two districts. This process is 
currently being headed by Harris and Associates and will be complete before the 
Council needs to levy any assessments for the 2020-2021 fiscal year.  City staff 
have wanted to complete a Proposition 218 process for the unhealthy districts for 
some time, and the opportunity to do so has finally happened.  Extending the 
contract with Harris and Associates will ensure that this process continues smoothly.  
 
No other terms of the existing contract will change, including the contract fee amount 
as discussed below.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The fee term for the contract is based on $500 per district and $1.00 per parcel.  Last 
year, the City spent $16,978.50 from July 1, 2018-June 30,2019.  These costs are 
covered by each assessment district, meaning no General Fund monies are used to 
pay for this contract. 



CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF HUGHSON 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON APPROVING 
AMENDMENT #1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
HARRIS & ASSOCIATES FOR ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 

SERVICES  
 

WHEREAS, on March 28, 2016 the Hughson City Council approved the 
Professional Service Agreement with Harris & Associates for the administration of the 
Assessment Districts, which commenced on March 1, 2016, was executed; and 

 
WHEREAS, the agreement identified an expiration date of February 28, 2017 

subject to the City’s right to exercise three option to extend the expiration date by one 
year each year up until February 28, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, City staff exercised their right to extend the expiration date for the last 

three years seeks; and 
 

WHEREAS, City staff have reached the end of their right to extend the contract 
and seek to extend the expiration date for two more years until February 28, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, all provisions of the agreement, except for the expiration date, are to 

remain per the original Professional Services Agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Hughson does hereby approve Amendment #1 to the Professional Service Agreement 
with Harris & Associates attached hereto as Attachment “A” to change the expiration to 
February 28, 2022. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Hughson at its 

regularly scheduled meeting on this 24th day of February 2020 by the following roll call 
vote: 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AYES: 

 



NOES: 
 

ABSTENTIONS: 

ABSENT: 

 

 
 

       JERAMY YOUNG, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 
ASHTON GOSE, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 



ATTACHMENT A

























 
 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: February 24, 2020 
Subject: Adopt Resolution No. 2020-06, Accepting the Public 

Improvements for the Province Place Subdivision  
Enclosures: WinPac-Euclid Avenue, LP Maintenance Bond  
Presented By: Lea C. Simvoulakis, Community Development Director 

  
Approved: _____________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2020-06, accepting the public improvements for the Province 
Place Subdivision.  
 
Background: 
 
At its regularly scheduled meeting on February 14, 2017, the Hughson City Council 
adopted Resolution No. 2017-02, adopting the General Plan Amendment, 
Rezoning, and Vesting Tentative Map for the Province Place subdivision which 
approved the construction of 39 units southwest of the intersection of Euclid Avenue 
and Locust Street.  As part of this subdivision, the developer (Winward Pacific 
Builders) extended underground utilities (sewer, water, storm) to the ends of the 
applicable public streets.  All of the utilities were designed in accordance with the 
requirements of the City of Hughson.  At this time, the developer has requested City 
acceptance of these public improvements.  To date, Winward Pacific Builders has 
constructed a total of X units.   
 
Discussion: 
 
As a requirement for approval, the developer posted bonds to secure the 
construction of the public improvements (sewer, water, storm).  Since construction, 
the City has inspected all the public improvements and has determined that they 
have been properly constructed per the Conditions of Approval, standard 
specifications, and all design expectations.  At this time, City staff recommends 
acceptance of these improvements. The developer has agreed to remedy any 
defects in the improvements arising from faulty or defective construction of said 
improvements that occur within one year of this acceptance.    
 
 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.7 
SECTION 4: CONSENT CALENDAR 



 
 

 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The developer has furnished the City with a warranty bond in the amount of 10% of 
the improvement costs ($30,025.45) to guarantee the public improvements for a 
period of one year following this acceptance against any defective work or labor 
done, or defective materials furnished, or adverse effect to any portion of adjacent 
properties in eh construction of these improvements.  Additionally, as a Condition of 
Approval, the developer agreed to incur all expenses of such repairs that exceed 
the 10% bond. 



 
 

CITY OF HUGHSON 
CITY COUNCIL   

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON ACCEPTING 

THE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE PROVINCE PLACE SUBDIVISION  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Hughson seeks to provide for the 
public good through the installation of public improvements; and  
 

WHEREAS, at its regularly scheduled meeting on February 14, 2017, the 
Hughson City Council adopted Resolution No. 2017-02, adopting the General Plan 
Amendment, Rezoning, and Vesting Tentative Map for the Province Place subdivision; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the developers of the Province Place Subdivision have offered 
public improvements set forth in Attachment 1 to the City; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City’s inspection consultants have determined the public 
improvements have been properly made and have recommended acceptance; and  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Hughson City Council hereby 
accepts the dedication of the public improvements identified in Attachment 1 hereto 
within the Province Place subdivision.  
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Hughson at its 
regular meeting held on this 24th day of February 2020 by the following roll call votes: 
 
  

AYES:     
 
NOES:    

 
   ABSTENTIONS:    
 

ABSENT:   
 
  
       __________________________  

               Jeramy Young, Mayor   
 
_____________________________ 
ASHTON GOSE, Deputy City Clerk 
 



 
 

 

*Attachment 1 will be provided at the City Council meeting held on Monday, 
February 24, 2020* 







  
 
Meeting Date: February 24, 2020 
Subject: Consideration to Accept the Quarterly City of Hughson 

Legislative Report  
Presented By:  Raul L. Mendez, City Manager  

  
Approved By: ______________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation:   
 
Accept the Quarterly City of Hughson Legislative Report. 
 
Background and Overview:   
 
On March 24, 2014, the Hughson City Council adopted Resolution No. 2014-10, 
establishing the City of Hughson’s Legislative Program.  The Legislative Program 
contains General Principles (Home Rule, Annexation, Right of Way and Unfunded 
Mandates) and focuses on key policy areas: Environmental/Utilities and Public 
Works/Transportations/Telecommunications.  The Legislative Program is intended 
to be a fluid document that is revisited periodically to enable the City Council and 
staff to react and respond when appropriate to legislative issues as they arise 
throughout the year in a timely manner. The document is made available to State 
and Federal elected representatives so that they are made aware of the issues that 
are important to Hughson and can advocate on those issues on the City’s behalf.  
The City of Hughson’s Legislative Program document is attached for reference. 
 
Historically, the City of Hughson has conducted legislative advocacy through its work 
by designated members of the City Council with organizations such as the League 
of California Cities (LOCC) and the California Local Agency Formation Commission 
(CALAFCO).  Due to limited staffing resources, this model has served the City of 
Hughson well.  Occasionally, the City of Hughson is asked to consider taking 
positions of support or opposition on Federal and State legislation and such requests 
are handled on a case-by-case basis by the Hughson City Council through its regular 
or special meetings.   
 
Under the current model, the City Manager and staff conduct the initial review of 
legislative requests.  If determined to be consistent with the City’s Legislative 
Program, they are further researched and then discussed with the Mayor and Mayor 
Pro Tem prior to bringing forward for consideration by the full City Council.  Matters 
not brought forward due to a higher level of urgency are shared with the City Council 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON AGENDA ITEM NO. 4.8 
SECTION 4:  CONSENT CALENDAR 



in a quarterly legislative report by the City Manager after consulting with the Mayor 
and Mayor Pro Tem on the appropriate action.  This approach ensures that staffing 
resources are utilized wisely to only conduct extensive work and analysis on those 
legislative matters consistent with the adopted Hughson Legislative Program.  
Moreover, it ensures that City staff responds in a timely manner when appropriate. 
 
The following is a summary of key legislative activity since the last reporting.  City 
staff historically tries to prepare this report on a quarterly basis to keep the City 
Council and public informed of discussions and actions occurring at the Federal or 
State level. 
 
State Budget 
 
Governor Gavin Newsome unveiled his proposed 2020-2021 State budget in early 
January in Sacramento, which includes 153.083 billion in General Fund, $64.758 
billion in special funds, and $5.352 billion in selected bond funds totaling $222.193 
billion. 
 
The proposed budget reflects a 3.5 percent increase in spending from the current 
fiscal year budget. 
 
The Governor’s proposed 2020-2021 budget continues the State’s focus on building 
up discretionary reserves and spending nearly $2 billion of the $5.6 billion dollar 
surplus on one-time spending, including supplemental payments to CalPERS for 
state unfunded liabilities.  However, the budget continues to grow state government 
through new responsibilities, redesigned State departments and increased safety 
new spending above the Legislative Analyst Office’s recommendation of no more 
than $1 billion. 
 
The Governor’s budget proposal appropriately acknowledges growing national and 
global economic risks from a recession on the horizon, global stock market volatility, 
and political instability.  Nonetheless, California continues to experience modest 
economic growth in the face of measurably slower gross domestic product across 
the national that projects downwards through 2023. 
 
To prepare for potential recession scenarios in the coming years that could result in 
a larger than $40 billion budget deficit the Governor’s budget proposal builds up 
State reserves to $21 billion overall ($18 billion Rainy Day Fund) and primarily 
focuses the remainder of the budget surplus of $5.6 billion on one-time spending. 
 
League Strategic Goals for 2020 
 
The League of California Cities Board of Directors approved five strategic goals for 
2020.  These are: 
 

1. Improve the supply and affordability of housing.  
 
Provide cities with financial tools to increase construction of housing, 
particularly for vulnerable populations, reform state regulatory barriers, and 



ensure cities retain flexibility based on the size, geography, demographics, 
impact mitigation and land use needs of each community. 

 
2. Advocate for increased funding and resources to prevent 

homelessness and assist individuals experiencing homelessness.  
 
Secure additional resources and flexibility to provide navigation assistance, 
emergency shelters and permanent supportive housing and strengthen 
partnerships with stakeholders to ensure mental health, substance abuse 
treatment, and wraparound services are available for adults and youth at 
risk of – or already experiencing –homelessness in our communities.  

 
3. Address cities’ fiscal sustainability to deliver essential services and 

meet pension obligations.  
 
Raise awareness among stakeholders about the fiscal challenges cities 
face and work collaboratively to secure new revenue tools and flexible 
prudent policies to ensure cities are able to provide essential services to 
their residents while maintaining their ability to meet pension obligations. 

 
4. Strengthen community and disaster preparedness, public safety, and 

resiliency.  
 
Improve community resiliency to disasters and environmental threats, and 
strengthen infrastructure stability and control, through expanding 
partnerships, including state and federal agencies, and securing additional 
resources and support for climate change adaptation, planning, 
preparedness, response, recovery, and sustainability in our cities. 

 
5. Address public safety concerns of California cities. 

 
• Reform recently enacted criminal justice laws — enacted by both statute and 

initiative — that have eroded public safety protections of California residents 
through the passage of the Police Chiefs/Grocer’s-sponsored criminal justice 
reform measure eligible for the November 2020 state ballot, or by equivalent 
reforms achieved through legislative action. 

• Protect public safety by reducing access to firearms by the mentally ill. 
• Support additional tools and resources to address critical community challenges 

such as homelessness, mental health, domestic violence, drug rehabilitation, 
human trafficking, and workforce development for ex-offender reentry. 

 
  



2020 League of California Cities Events 
 
New Mayors and Council Members Academy, Sacramento – January 22-24, 2020.  
-Attended in part by Councilmember Buck. 
 
City Managers Dept. Meeting, Napa – February 5-7, 2020.  
-Attended by City Manager Mendez.  Sessions focused on independent contractors 
and CalPERS services, the rise of women in city government, the costing mindset 
of collective bargaining and effective leadership in the City Manager profession   Also 
attended the City Managers Department Executive Committee Meeting as the 
Central Valley Division Representatives. 
 
Planning Commissioners Academy, Sacramento – March 4-6, 2020. 
 
Legislative Action Day, Sacramento – April 22, 2020.  
 
City Attorney Spring Conference, Carlsbad – May 6-8, 2020. 
 
Mayors and Councilmembers Executive Forum/Advanced Leadership Workshops, 
Monterey – June 17-19, 2020  
 
Annual Conference and Expo, Long Beach – October 7-9, 2020. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Implementation of the City of Hughson’s Legislative Program is managed by existing 
staff and through existing budgeted allocations.   









 

 

      
 
Meeting Date: February 24, 2020 
Subject: Adopt Resolution No. 2020-07, Adopting the City of 

Hughson Unclaimed Property (Money) Policy 
Presented By:  Merry Mayhew, Director of Finance and Admin Services  

 
Approved By: ______________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation:   
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2020-07, adopting the City of Hughson Unclaimed Property 
(Money) Policy. 
 
Background and Overview:  
 
Each year, the City accumulates an amount of outstanding checks that remain 
unclaimed, even though attempts are made to contact the payees and reissue the 
checks.  Normally, these unclaimed funds consist of checks issued through accounts 
payable, payroll, or utility deposits / refunds.  State law allows for uncashed checks 
which are more than one year old and less than $15, more than one year old and 
any amount if the owner’s or depositor’s name is unknown, or greater than $15 and 
more than three years old, to become the property of the City following publication 
on its website or in the local newspaper. 
 
City staff proposes that the City Council adopt a formal policy regarding the proper 
handling of unclaimed funds that follows the requirements of Government Code 
Section 50050-50056.  Adoption of this policy will set up a procedure to escheat 
these funds to the City after proper notice has been satisfied.  The attached 
resolution and policy were developed in coordination with the City Attorney. 
 
Discussion: 
 
The City of Hughson currently has on its books, 58 uncashed checks in the amount 
of $14,220.17 that are three or more years old.  An additional five uncashed checks 
($49.02) are more than one year old and less than $15, or the owner’s name is 
unknown. City staff have researched these unclaimed checks, and where current 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1 
SECTION 7:  NEW BUSINESS 

 



information was available, City staff have voided the stale dated checks and reissued 
them. 
 
If approved, stale dated checks that are more than one year old and less than $15 
or any amount more than three years old, where the owner’s name is unknown, will 
be immediately voided and deposited to the General Fund.   
 
For the remaining stale dated checks that are more than three years old, City staff 
will place two notices in a newspaper, of general circulation within the City of 
Hughson, listing the required information per the policy.  On a designated date, any 
unclaimed funds will become the property of the City and will be transferred to the 
General Fund. 
 
City staff will complete this process annually in order to maintain better control over 
outstanding checks. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Upon review and adoption of the Unclaimed Property Policy and Resolution, City 
staff would follow the policy and immediately transfer $6,256.62 to the General Fund 
representing 29 unclaimed accounts that are either less than $15 or the owner’s 
name is unknown.  Notifications would be posted in the local newspaper advertising 
25 accounts totaling $5,140.53.  Any unclaimed funds will be transferred to the City 
General Fund within the required time frame. 
 
 



 
1377990-1 

CITY OF HUGHSON 
CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON 
ADOPTING AN UNCLAIMED PROPERTY (MONEY) POLICY 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Hughson sometimes has in its possession money 
belonging to others which is unclaimed—for example, incidental money found by a 
citizen in a public place and turned over to the City, or utility deposit money held by 
the City after an account is closed; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Hughson City Council desires to establish a policy 
regarding the retention, return, and processing of unclaimed monies in the 
possession of the City; and 

WHEREAS, it is the intentions of the City of Hughson City Council in 
establishing this policy to comply fully with the requirements of California law in an 
effort to efficiently and fairly return funds to their rightful owners. 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Hughson adopts the Unclaimed Property (Money) Policy (“Policy”) attached hereto 
as Attachment 1 and directs the City Manager to implement the Policy 
immediately. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the City Council of the City of Hughson at its 
regular meeting held on this 24th day of February 2020 by the following roll call 
votes: 

 
 AYES:  
 
 NOES: 
 
 ABSTENTIONS: 
 
 ABSENT: 
 
 
 
          JERAMY YOUNG, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
ASHTON GOSE, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 



 
1377990-1 

Attachment A 
 
 

UNCLAIMED PROPERTY (MONEY) POLICY   
 

1. SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF POLICY:  This Policy applies to money that is 
not the property of the City of Hughson but in its possession.  It is intended to 
provide rules, in accordance with California law, to govern the retention, return, 
and processing of such unclaimed monies. 
 

2. APPLICABLE LAW:  Generally, California’s Unclaimed Property Law 
(Code of Civil Procedure §§ 1500 et seq.) applies to unclaimed property, and by its 
application such property may escheat to the State; however, per Code of Civil 
Procedure § 1502, money in the official custody of a city is excluded from the 
Unclaimed Property Law, and instead is subject to the provisions of Government 
Code Sections 50050-50053. 
 

3. MANDATE:  The City, as to money not its property but in its possession, will 
abide by the mandates set forth in Government Code Sections 50050-50053, as 
amended, and such other laws of the State of California as may be enacted. 
 

4. PROCEDURES: 
 

4.1 Notice.  
 

4.1.1 For all money of a person or business held by the City for 
three (3) years or more, but excluding money that is restitution to a crime victim, 
the City will cause a notice to be published once a week for two successive weeks 
in a newspaper of general circulation published in the City. 
 
  4.1.2 The notice will state:  (i) the amount of money, (ii) the name of 
the owner or the fund or account in which it is held, (iii) information describing how 
it is the money is in the City’s possession, and (iv) that it is proposed the money 
will become the property of the City on a designated date not less than 45 days nor 
more than 60 days after the first publication of the notice unless a valid claim is 
filed by a legitimate owner of the money.   
 
 4.2 Claims.   
 

4.2.1 At any time before the money becomes the property of the 
City (see below), a person or business claiming to be the true owner of the money 
may file a claim with the City seeking return of his/her/its/their money.   
 
  4.2.2. A claim must include the claimant’s name, address, telephone 
number, amount of claim, the utility account number associated with the money (if 
applicable), and the grounds on which the claim is founded.   
 

4.2.3. The claim must be filed before the date the unclaimed money 
becomes the property of the City (which date is set forth in the notice—see above).   

 



 
1377990-1 

4.2.4. The City must either accept or reject any filed claim by 
sending a written notice to the claimant.  The City will attempt to provide that 
written notice within 30 days of its receipt of the filed claim. 

 
4.2.5. If a claim is rejected by the City, and the claimant appeals that 

determination to a court of competent jurisdiction within Stanislaus County, the City 
will not release or transfer that portion of unclaimed money for which a court action 
has been filed until a decision is rendered by the court.  To the extent the court 
determines a claim is invalid, in whole or in part, that portion of the money for 
which the claim is found to be invalid will become the property of the City.  

 
4.2.6. If a claim is determined to be valid, either by the City or a 

court, the City will return the money identified in a valid claim to the claimant via a 
check mailed to the claimant at the address provided in the claim.  The City will 
attempt to return that money within 30 days of the determination whether the claim 
is valid. 
 
 4.3 Unclaimed Money.  If, after notice is published as provided in 
Section 4.1 (above), no claim to the money is filed with the City by the designated 
date, the money will become the property of the City. 
 
 4.4 Transfer to General Fund.  When any money become the property 
of the City as provided in this Policy, the City may transfer the money to its general 
fund. 
 
5. Special Rules for Small Amounts and Unknown Owners.  
Notwithstanding anything in this Policy to the contrary, money of less than fifteen 
dollars ($15) or any amount if the owner’s or depositor’s name is unknown, either 
of which remains in the possession of the City for one (1) year, may be transferred 
to the City’s general fund without the necessity of publication of a notice as 
provided in Section 4.1 above. 
 



 

 

      
 
Meeting Date: February 24, 2020 
Subject: Consider Recommendation from the Parks, Recreation and 

Entertainment Commission Regarding the Request from 
the Hughson Unified School District for City Funding for 
the Hughson Sports and Fitness Complex Parking Lot 
Improvement Project 

Presented By:  Raul L Mendez, City Manager 
   Lea Simvoulakis, Community Development Director 

    
Approved By: ______________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Consider the recommendation from the Parks, Recreation and Entertainment 
Commission regarding the request from the Hughson Unified School District for City 
funding for the Hughson Sports and Fitness Complex Parking Lot Improvement 
Project. 
 
Background and Overview: 
 
The Hughson Sports and Fitness Complex (HSFC) is located on Locust Street 
behind the Hughson High School campus and owned by the Hughson Unified School 
District.  Over the last decade, the Hughson Unified School District has worked with 
local partners to develop the facility.  Some of the amenities at the HSFC include 
sports fields for soccer, softball and other uses, walking trail to the Hughson 
Arboretum and Gardens, fitness stations, tribute benches, a veteran’s memorial wall, 
a donor’s wall and a tribute to fallen officer Deputy Dennis Wallace.  The Hughson 
Sports and Fitness Complex Steering Committee has been instrumental in the 
construction of many of these elements through active fundraising and outreach.   
 
Councilmember Buck is the City Council designee on the HSFC Steering Committee 
and City Manager Mendez also attends their monthly meeting regularly.  The City of 
Hughson has been an active partner in the development of the Hughson Sports and 
Fitness Complex since inception.  In 2012, the City Council approved an agreement 
with the Hughson Unified School District to supply non-potable water at a reduced 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2 
SECTION 7:  NEW BUSINESS 

 



rate to the HSFC for irrigation purposes.  The Hughson Unified School District 
contributed $45,000 in funding for improvements to the well system supplying the 
non-potable water to the site.  Additionally, as part of the agreement, the Hughson 
Sports and Fitness Complex is open for public use when not being used by the 
HUSD for sport activities and programs.   
 
On November 12, 2019, the City Council accepted the completion of the Locust 
Street Improvement Project by Ross F. Carroll (RFC).  The project, which fronts the 
Hughson Sports and Fitness Complex, was previously awarded by the City Council 
to RFC, the lower responsible bidder, in the amount of $168,300.  This project is the 
result of the Joint Project Improvement Agreement between the City and Hughson 
Unified School District which states that the City will project manage the 
improvements on behalf of the School District, and the School District will use the 
funds from the sale of Lebright Fields to pay for the project. Upon completion of the 
improvements, Locust Street was dedicated to the City for acceptance. 
 
Construction and other (engineering, legal, and advertising) costs were entirely 
funded by the Hughson Unified School District using the proceeds from the sale of 
Lebright Fields to the City of Hughson in the amount of $295,000.  The total Locust 
Street Improvement Project costs were approximately $200,000.  Shortly after the 
completion of the project, the Hughson Unified School District discussed a funding 
plan for the undeveloped Hughson Sports and Fitness Complex parking lot.  To 
assist with this discussion, a preliminary estimate was prepared a few years ago that 
determined that the cost of the project would be approximately $400,000.        
 
Discussion: 
 
On November 12, 2019, the Hughson Unified School District Board of Trustees 
discussed the Hughson Sports and Fitness Complex Parking Lot and agreed to set 
aside $50,000 for this project to start to formally develop a funding plan for these 
improvements.  Additionally, the Hughson Sports and Fitnes Complex Steering 
Committee has agreed to allocate $50,000 from its fundraising efforts for this project.  
Part of the funding strategy is to also approach other local public partners.  As such, 
the Hughson Unified School District Superintendent and City Manager previously 
met with Stanislaus County Board of Supervisor Vito Chiesa who indicated that he 
would be supportive of a $50,000 funding allocation from the County and would 
approach the rest of the Board with that recommendation at the appropriate time. 
 
The City of Hughson has also contemplated its participation in the funding plan.  
Shortly after the November 12, 2019 HUSD Board meeeting, the Superintendent 
formally reached out to the City Manager to determine if the City was interested in 
supporting the project financially, at any level.  The Superintendent indicated that 
the District would like to approach other local private donor(s) once the support from 
public agencies is determined.  The hope is that the private donor(s) can help close 
the funding gap and make this a viable project to deliver in the short term. 
 
This request was discussed by the City/School 2+2 Committee during its January 
13th meeting.  At that time, the Council designees (Councilmembers Bawanan and 
Buck) had an opportunity to ask questions.  At the meeting, Councilmember 



Bawanan also asked the Superintendent to approach the Hughson Chamber of 
Commerce to formally request financial support for the project. 
 
Parks, Recreation and Entertainment Commission Recommendation 
 
Per the Hughson Municipal Code Chapter 2.14, the Parks, Recreation and 
Entertainment Commission “shall advise the City Council regarding policies for the 
acquisition, development, maintenance and improvement of park facility.”  City staff 
brought the the formal funding request from the Hughson Unified School District for 
the Hughson Sports and Fitness Complex Parking Lot Improvement Project to the 
Commission for consideration during its February 11, 2020 regular meeting.   
 
City staff presented several options that the Commission could consider prior to 
formulating a recommendation to the City Council.  These included: 
  
1. Not to contribute any funding for the subject project on the basis that the City has 

limited funding in this area and any funding allocated will take away from the 
City’s ability to improve and maintain its existing (Lebright Fields, Starn Park, 
Fontana Park, etc.) and new parks/recreation facilities. 

 
2. To contribute an amount ($5,000, $10,000, $25,000, etc.) less than the the 

amount currently designated/pledged by the Hughson Unified School District, 
Hughson Sports and Fitness Committee and Stanislaus County and find that the 
allocation serves a public benefit. 
 

3. To match the $50,000 amount currently designated/pledged by the Hughson 
Unified School District, Hughson Sports and Fitness Steering Committee and 
Stanislaus County and find that the allocation serves a public benefit.   

 
At the meeting, the Commission also received public comment from Mike Bava and 
Marie Assali, encouraging them to make a recommendation to the City Council for 
some level of funding for this project. 
 
After discussing the item at length and asking questions of City staff, the 
Commission passed a motion (3-0-2) by Commissioner Barth, seconded by 
Commissioner Redding, recommending that the City Council allocate $50,000 in 
funding for this project from the City’s future State of California Proposition 68 (Per 
Capita Program). 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Historically, the City Council has not approved the use of the general fund for such 
requests.  Currently, the City’s Park Development Impact Fee Fund has nearly 
$500,000 available.  The City is eligible to receive one-time funding from the State 
of California Proposition 68 (Per Capita Program).  There is a 20% match 
requirement associated with this funding since Hughson is not a severely 
disadvantaged community.  If interested in using this funding source for this project, 
City staff would need to package an application to the program to the State of 
California.  It is anticipated that cities are generally eligible for a minimum $200,000.         
 














	1.1 Agenda 2-24-20
	AGENDA
	1. State of the City Address, Presented by Mayor Jeramy Young
	2. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken):
	3. PRESENTATIONS:  NONE.
	4. CONSENT CALENDAR:
	5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  NONE.
	6. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:  NONE.
	7. NEW BUSINESS:
	8. CORRESPONDENCE:
	9. COMMENTS:
	10. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:


	City of Hughson
	Samaritan Village almond & walnut room
	UNotice Regarding Non-English Speakers:

	4.1 Minutes and Coversheet 2-24-20
	MINUTES
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken):
	2. PRESENTATIONS:  NONE.
	3. CONSENT CALENDAR:
	4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  NONE.
	5. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING:
	6. NEW BUSINESS:
	7. CORRESPONDENCE: NONE.
	8. COMMENTS:
	9. CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING:


	City of Hughson
	City Council Meeting
	City Hall Council Chambers

	4.2 Warrant Register SR 2-24-20
	4.2a warrant list_02202020_110313
	4.3 RV Parking Ordinance SR
	On February 10, 2020, the Hughson City Council waived the first reading of the proposed ordinance and held a public hearing.  The City Council had an opportunity to ask questions and seek clarification from City staff regarding the ordinance and its e...

	4.3a RV Parking Ordinance Amendment 2020 (1-14-19)(1285156.7)
	4.4 Planning&ParksCommission SB225-SR
	On February 10, 2020, the Hughson City Council waived the first reading of the proposed ordinance and held a public hearing.  The City Council had an opportunity to ask questions and seek clarification from City staff regarding the ordinance and its e...

	4.4a Ordinance Amending Ch. 2.12 and 2.14 Regarding Commissions rlm
	4.5  Bartle Wells Sewer Rate Study Update revised
	4.5a Bartle Wells PSC Resolution legalreviewed
	4.5b BWA 2020 WW Agreement
	4.5c Exhibit A Hughson WW Rate Proposal 2019.
	4.6 Harris and Associates Contract SR rmedits
	4.6a Harris and Associates Reso LegalReviewed
	AYES:

	4.6b Amendment Harris and Assoc.
	4.7 Province Place Bond SR- rmedits
	4.7a Provice Place Reso(1387714.2)
	4.7b Province Place bond
	4.8 Hughson Qtly Legislative Rpt SR 02-24-20
	Meeting Date: February 24, 2020
	Subject: Consideration to Accept the Quarterly City of Hughson Legislative Report
	Presented By:  Raul L. Mendez, City Manager
	Approved By: ______________________________
	Staff Recommendation:
	Accept the Quarterly City of Hughson Legislative Report.
	Background and Overview:

	4.8a Legislative Program
	7.1 Unclaimed Property Policy and Resolution
	7.1a Unclaimed Property Policy Resolution(1377990.1)
	A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON ADOPTING AN UNCLAIMED PROPERTY (MONEY) POLICY

	7.2 Hughson Sports and Fitnes Complex Parking Lot Improvement-LS edits
	8.1
	8.2

